
 

 

 
 
#plymcabinet 

 
 

CABINET 
 
Tuesday 12 November 2013 
2.00 pm 
Council House (Next to the Civic Centre), Plymouth 
 
Members: 
Councillor Evans, Chair 
Councillor Peter Smith, Vice Chair 
Councillors Coker, Lowry, McDonald, Penberthy, Vincent and Williams. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
This agenda acts as notice that Cabinet will be considering business in private if items are 
included in Part II of the agenda. 
 
This meeting will be broadcast live to the internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated 
viewing.  By entering the Warspite Room and during the course of the meeting, Councillors are 
consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting. 
 

By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, the public are consenting to 
being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting. 
 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Democratic Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for  Nicola Kirby 
T 01752 304867 
E nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
Published 04 November 2013 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
CABINET 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I  (PUBLIC MEETING) 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for absence submitted by Cabinet Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   (Pages 1 - 2) 
  
 Cabinet Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items 

on this agenda.  A flowchart providing guidance on interests is attached to assist 
councillors. 

  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 3 - 10) 
  
 To sign and confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 

2013. 
  
4. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution. 

 
Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic Support 
Unit, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, Plymouth, PL1 2AA, or email to 
democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any questions must be received at least five clear 
working days before the date of the meeting. 

  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
6. THE PLAN FOR HOMES   (Pages 11 - 24) 
  
 The Director for Place will submit a report on proposals to establish a programme of 

initiatives to help achieve a step change in the delivery of homes within Plymouth.  The 
Plan for Homes will aim to bring forward 1,000 homes per annum over the next five 
years to address the severe housing needs within the city and to support the growth 
agenda. 
 
The report also seeks agreement to include within the Capital Programme a significant 
Affordable Housing Loan Facility and to the release of further city-council-owned sites in 
support of the Plan for Homes and the delivery of more affordable homes. 

  



 

 

7. FEES, CHARGES AND CONCESSIONS POLICY   (Pages 25 - 30) 
  
 The Assistant Director for Finance, Efficiencies, Technology and Assets will submit a 

report on an over-arching Fees, Charges and Concessions Policy to provide a clear 
statement of Plymouth City Council’s corporate approach to fees and charges 
incorporating concessions. 

 

 
This policy sets out the principles that the Council will use when levying a charge for 
services that we provide and why we are doing so. It will ensure we adopt a consistent 
and fair approach to fees and charges, and that they are used to deliver the Council’s 
overall objectives whilst protecting, wherever possible, the most vulnerable citizens of 
Plymouth. It also sets a direction of travel about principles to be used when waiving 
charges and the conditions that will be applied in these circumstances. 

  
8. CORPORATE MONITORING REPORT AS AT 30 

SEPTEMBER 2013 (INCLUDING CAPITAL SCHEMES AND 
PROGRAMME APPROVALS)   

(Pages 31 - 46) 

  
 The Corporate Management Team will submit a report outlining the finance monitoring 

position of the Council as at the end of September 2013 and will provide details on how 
the Council is delivering against its financial measures using its capital and revenue 
resources and to approve relevant budget variations, virements and new capital schemes.  
 
The report will also provide details on Human Resources and Organisation Development 
data including workforce and sickness statistics.   

  
9. CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 

MONITORING REPORT   
TO FOLLOW 

  
 The Chief Executive will submit a report on the progress of delivery of outcomes 

identified in the Corporate Plan, highlighting cause for celebration as well as delays and 
issues requiring corrective action.  

  
10. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
(Members of the public to note that, if agreed, you will be asked to leave the meeting). 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
AGENDA 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, members are entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed. 
Nil 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 
 
 
 
           
          
 
         
    
         No   Yes 
 
 
 
 
   
    No   Yes 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
              
         
          
     
                
          
                
     
 
           
 
             
      
     
 

 
 
 
 
 
D
P 

I 

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)?  This will include 
the interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees): 

• any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain 
• any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor or the 

councillor’s election expenses from a Trade Union 
• any land licence or tenancy they have in Plymouth 
• any current contracts leases or tenancies  between the Council and them 
• any current contracts leases or tenancies  between the Council and any organisation with land in 

Plymouth in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and 
securities 

• any organisation which has land or a place of business in Plymouth and in which they have a 
relevant interest in its shares or its securities 

What matters are being discussed? 

 
 
 
P
r 
i 
v
a
t
e 
 
I
n
t
e
r
e
s

t 

Does the business affect the well-being or financial position of (or relate to the approval, consent, licence or 
permission) for: 

• a member of your family or  
• any person with whom you have a close association; or 
• any organisation of which you are a member or are involved in its management (whether or not 

appointed to that body by the council).  This would include membership of a secret society and 
other similar organisations. 

 
Yes           No   You can speak and vote 

 
 
 
   

 
 

Yes    No 

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid risk of allegations of corruption 
or bias 

Declare interest and leave (or obtain 
a dispensation) 

Declare the interest and speak and 
vote  

Will it confer an advantage or disadvantage on your family, close associate or an organisation 
where you have a private interest more than it affects other people living or working in the 
ward? 

C
a
b
i
n
e

t 

Cabinet members must declare and give brief details about any conflict of interest* relating to the matter to 
be decided and leave the room when the matter is being considered. Cabinet members may apply to the 
Monitoring Officer for a dispensation in respect of any conflict of interest. 
 
*A conflict of interest is a situation in which a councillor’s responsibility to act and take decisions impartially, 
fairly and on merit without bias may conflict with his/her personal interest in the situation or where s/he may 
profit personally from the decisions that s/he is about to take. 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
����
�����������������

��������
�

	
����
�����������������
�

������	��
�
����������	
���
�	��	���	������	
����������	�����	������	����	������	
����������
	������	��������	���	�������
�	
	
��
�	��	�����������	����������
	����
	������	� 	���	��!�"�������	�������#	$����%	���	&�  ��	
������	� 	���	 �����	��
�����
	���	����������
	'������(	���	�������#	�����	&�
�	���	)���
�	
*���"%�	&����#	+��	����� 	
,�������%�	������	$��-�#��	���������	 ��	���"��%�	�����	&��

���	
�.������	��������	 ��	���"�����	�������
%�	)����	)�����-	�������-��	�����

�����-	����-��%�	
���	*(#��	�/���	� 	.�&%�	�����	/��� �,	���������#	����
���	��!���������%�	��	/���	�������	
����
��	
���#	0���
	���	���������%�	�����	������	�*���"	����������%�	�����	1�����#	�/���	� 	
)������%�	����
	2������	�������-��	)������	����-��%�	�����(	���"���
	��

�
����	��������	 ��	
��
�����	�������
%	���	1�����	3��4#	�����������	��""���	'  ����%�	
	
�"���-��
	 ��	�4
�����	����������
	+�(�#�	���4����#	���	�������	���	������#	��#��	���������	
 ��	�����%�	
	
&��	������-	
������	��	5�66	"�	���	 ���
���	��	5�78	"��	
	
�����������	
�
�������
�����������
�����
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������������������
�
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
������������������
�
���������
��������������
	

���� �������	 �����!� �	����	���
	
&����	(���	��	�����������
	� 	������
�	����	4#	����������
	��	����������	(���	���	����	� 	
�������	��	��������	��	����
	�����	���
���������	��	���
	������-���
	

���� " �#	�����
	
�-����	���	������
	� 	���	������-	����	��	9	��"���4��	56:9���
	

���� $#��	 ����!��"�	%���#&� ����
	
&����	(���	��	;��
����
	 ���	���	"�4���	 ��	���
	������-���
	

���� ���#	 �'�#���	��&'���#�� �����(�"�����
	
����	���	���
���	� 	��4�����	����������	����
	������	� 	���	��!�"�������	�������#	$����%	
��������	���	������-	���	"�������	��	�"����	��	
������#�		
	
��4����	(���	����
��	!		
		

Agenda Item 3Page 3



��%	 � 	 ���	 (���	 � 	 ���	 ��!�"�������	 �������#	 $����	 ��	 �����	 (����	
��������	"��!����
���	
������#	� 	���	��� �	���"�����	����<		

�4%	 � 	���	�������	���	�������	� 	���	������	�������#	��� ������	����	
��	9	 ����	56:9	(����	���	4���	�����-��	 ��	
��	 ���	
����	  ��	 ���	
���������	� 	������	 ��	
������#	 ��	���	#���	���	4�#����		�����
	���	
����	 �����
	 ���	 4���	 �������-��	 ��	 ����	 (���	 ��4����	 ���4��
	
���	 ��������
	 ��	 �	 ��-����	 4�
�
	 ��	 ��
��

	 ����
	 � 	 ��-�	 ��
��	
����
"����	 "���	 "�� ��������	 �������#	 "���
	 ���	 ��������	 ����
	
(�����	���	���"�����	����<		

��%	

		

����	 ����(��-	���
���������	� 	���	�������=
	��
�����4��	&����	0���	
����	(����	 ���������	��	�
�������	 
���� ���	� 	>?8�	����	 ���	��,�	
�����	 #���
�	 ���	 ��!�"�������	 �������#	 $����	 ����-��
��	 �����	 ��	
��������	 ��	 �����	 ����	� 	�������-��-	����
���	�����-�	 ���#	��
�	���	
���	 ����	 � 	 �����-	 �
	 �	 ��������	  �����	 ���	 ��	 "������	 
�""����		
����������	 ����
	 �

����	 ��4����	 ����	 �����	 (����	 4�	 �  ������	

������#	��	�����	��	���	�����	��	���
	"����

<										

��%	 ����	 �����	 ���	 4���	 ���	 ����	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ����
	  ��	 "��!����
���	

������#<	

��%	 ����	���	����
����
	���
��-	 ���	���	"�4��������	� 	���	 ��(���	"���	
"�������	������	�""�������#	 ��	"��!����
���	
������#	���	����������	
����
	�
���	 ����	 ���	$����	(�
	-����	����	������	� 	  ���������-	
����
<			

� %	 � 	���	 �����	(���	"��-�����	 ��	���	��!�"�������	�������#	$����	
�
	 ����(
	@			

		 '���4��	56:9�	"�4���	���
��������	��	���	4��-��<	
		 1����4��	 ���	 �����4��	 56:9�	 ���4��	 �������-	 ��	 ���	

4��-��<	�� ��������	
�

���
	 ��	
������#	"����	�����
	���	����	
�����
	 ��	 
������	 ����	 "��

���
<	 ���	 �	 )������	 ���	
&���
 ��������	��!�"�������	2����(	*���"<		

		 A�	:9	���	:8	������#	56:7�	
������#	� 	���	�������=
	4��-���	
"�� �������	���	���"�����	����	"����	��	��������������
	
4���-	
�4������	��	��4����	��	::	)�4����#	56:7	���	���	���#	
�������	��	57	)�4����#	56:7<		
	

�-%	 � 	���	 ���������-	��!�"�������	�����(
	�
	 ����(
	@	

		 "���	���	����	4�
	
������
<		
		 "��������
	 ��	������-	(���	���������
��	�����"����
<		
		 ��
�����	
������
	�(�4
���	���	�����������	����
������
%<		
		 ���-�4�������	(�����-<		
		 ��	
�����	"�����-	�����(�	���������
�����	� 	����������	"�����-	

B���
<	
		 ������	��������4����#	 ����<	
		 �����(��-	���	-�"	�
�����	"�"��
	���	(�� ���	�� ���%<	
		 ��#�����	����	����-��-	"����#	������"����<	

Page 4



		 �������	��,	
�""���	
�����<	����������	� 	������-
<	
		 ���
��-	4��� ��	
"���	����	
�4
��#<	
		  ������	 ���	 ����
 ��������	 "��-�����	 �"����������#	 ������	

�����	
�����	����%�	
	
����������	
���
	�
���	����������	����
	��	"�

	���	�����
	� 	��4����	��	���	����������
	
��������	��	���	�����(
	���	��	������	 ��(���	��	
����-	���	�������
�			
	
�-����	�����	��	 ������	�	(������	��"���	�
	��
�	"��
�����	��	��4����	��	���	(���	� 	
������#�			
	

�
�� � &���'�"����� ��	 �������#	 �'������	���
	
����������	&�  ��	������	� 	���	 �����	��
�����
	���	����������
	'������(	���	�������#	
�����	&�
�	���	)���
�	*���"%�	��������	���	������-	���	"��
�����	���	
������#	
��������������
	 ����(��-	�����	�����(	� 	��4���#	�������
������	
	
�����	/��� �,	���������#	����
���	��!���������%	���	�����(	���"���
	��

�
����	
��������	 ��	��
�����	�������
%	��
�	��������	���	������-	 ��	���
	�����	
	
����������	�����	�����	���"��#	+�����%	��
"�����	���	���������	����	��	���	�  ����
	���	

������	��	������"	�	"����#	�����-	��-���	��	���	��������������
�		)���	(� �	(�
	������#	
4���-	��
������	��	��4�����
	���	��	(����	���"	
������#	�� �����	� 	"��-��

�			
	
����������	
���
	������%	C�����	(���	����������	�����	�����	��	�����	����������	&�  ��	 ��	
��
	(����	��-�����	(���	���	��
�	���	 ���
�	-���"	���4��
	���	���	���
�	(��	
�""�����	���	
�����(�						
		
&��	��������������
	(���	�����	���	���4��
	(���	����
��	����	�	��� �	"����#	��	
��4�����
	(����	4�	
�4������	��	��4����	��	���	����
��		�
	

���� �% �����)�����	���&#� �������������*+�������
	
������	$��-�#��	���������	 ��	���"��%	
�4������	�	��"���	��	�"����
	 ��	���	�������#	� 	
��������=
	������
�	��	"������	��	����-�����	��������#	4�
��	
������	��	���	 ������
	(���	
��������	 ���	"��!4����	��	 ���	#���=
	����		&��	"��"�
��	4�
���

	��
�	-���"��	���	�������#	
� 	���	
������	����	
�,	��(	���
���
	���	���	"����
���	(����	4�	��������	��������-	�����	
��������#	���������	���	
�����
=	���������	
������
�	����-
���	�,�
���-	����������	
������
�					
	
)����	)�����-	�������-��	�����

�����-	����-��%	���	��	/���	�������	����
��	
���#	0���
	
���	���������%	��������	���	������-	 ��	���
	�����	
	
����������	
���
	������%	��
�	���(	���4��
=	���������	��	���	
�"�����	"������	��"���	
���������-	�����������#	
��
�����	 ��������	������
�	�� �����	��	��	������	8?	4���(�	
	
����������	�������
	���4����	���4��	 ��	��������	���	0���-	���"��%	����������	���	
"��"�
��
	���	���������	����	!				
	
	
	

Page 5



�%	 �	 ���
�����-	 �""�����	 (�
	 "��"�
��	 (����	 (����	 -���"	 ���	
��
�-�����	 
���
	 (���
�	 ����������-	 �������#	 ��	 ���	 ����������
	 ���		
�����-	 ���	4�
�	�
�	� 	 �	 ���-�	� 	 ��������#	 
�����-
�	&��
	(����	
������	 ���	 4���	 �  ���	 ��
�
	 ���	 4�����	 � 	 ��
"������	 ����	 ����	
(���	 �	 
��-��	 ��
�-�����	 
���	 (���
�	 ��,���
��-	 ����
�����	 ��	  ����	
����	�������#<		

�4%	 ���	 "��"�
��	 (����	 "������	 -������	 �""���������
	 ��	 "���	 ����

	
�������	 "�����"���#	 ���(� ��#	 ���	 ������	 ��
����-�	 ���	 �����	 �������	

������
	������#	"�������-	�� ���������	������	���	"�������-	
�""���	
 ��	 ������
<		

��%	

		

�����	(�
	�	����������	 ���	������	�����

�����
	��	(���	(���	
���	 �������	 ��	 ������	 ��	 ����-�����	 ����#	 ���������	 
������	 �  ���	
4������-	 ��	 �,�
���-	 C����	 �����

�����-	 ���������
	 ���	 �������	
��;��������
�	)������	C����	(�����-	(���	�����	"������
	
���	�
	��4	
������	 ���
�	 (����	 4�	 ������"��	 ��	 ����	 (���	 ���	 ��(	 �����	 � 	
�������#<		

��%		 ���
	�����	� 	�������#	(����	�������	�	
����-	� 	>6�D?6�	 ���	���	

���#	0���
	4��-��<	

��%	 �	(���	���-��-	���
��������	���	�����	"����	(���	"�����
�	��������	
������	����
��#	*���"
�	���	�����	��#	
����������
	��	�� ���	���	
 �����	��� �-�������	���	
������	�������#�	

� %	 �	 ������#	 ���
��������	 2�"����	 (�
	 
�4������	 "�������-	 ��	
�������(	� 	��#	�����
	����	���	����-��	�����-�	���
	���
���������	
���	� 	(����	(�
	�	"��"�
��	4#	���	����
��#	$����	 ��	���� ���	
���	����	&���	��	���4���	���
�	�(�	������
�	
�	����	���#	�����		4�	
����-��	����	�  �������#<	

�-%	 ��	 (�
	 �����������	 ����	 ��������
	 (����	 4�	 �(�����	  ��	 �����	
#���
	(���	���	�"����	��	�,����	 ��	�����	#���
�	��	��
���	���	��(	

������	�����	���	����	��	 ���#	������"�		

��	/���	��
�	��"�����	��	���	���
��������	�,����
��	
	
�����������	�"����
	���
������	���	���
��
	 ��	���	����
���	@	
	
�
	
��	���	��	���	��"����		
		
�-����	����	@	
		

�:%	 ���	�������	���������
	�	������	 ��	��������=
	������
	"����
���	��	

�,	��(	���
���
�	�
	
��	���	��	���	��������	��"	���	��	����	(���	
'"����	:	
��	���	��	���	��"����	&��
	�"����	(���	�������	���	"����
���	
��	���	�������	��������-	�����	��������#	���������	���	
�����
=	
���������	
������
	����-
���	�,�
���-	����������	
������
	���	
��������
	(���	4�	�(�����	 ��	�����	#���
	(���	���	�"����	��	�,����	
 ��	�����	#���
<		

Page 6



�5%	 ���� ���	���	����	&���	��������=
	������
	��	��#�"���	���	
���4�����	��	���4��	����	�  ������	����-�����	(���
�	���"��-	���	
�(�	��
�-�����	
���
	 ��	�������#	��	�������	���
�
����#	 ��	 ������
<			

�9%	
		

���	��
�-�����	
���	 ��	�(���	���
	��������=
	������	�
	���
��	���	
��"�����	(���	��	�""��"�����	�������#	
����	���	��	
�-�� �����	������-	
��
�
�		

	
���� ��%�����!#�� �,�!��"#��������,�	 ����!��#	%�� 	'�	��

��� �	��	�� ���	�����
	
������	$��-�#��	���������	 ��	���"��%	
�4������	�	��"���	��	�	"��"�
��	��	����-���	���	
 ����	����
���	��-�����-	���	�����	
�����
	 �����-	 �������	(����	��
����	���	�;����4��	
��
���4�����	� 	 �����-	����

	���	
�����
�	��	���	�

�
����	��������	 ��	
���������	+������-	
���	)����#	��""���	��	���
��������	(���	���	��#�����	������
	)����	���	��4����	���4��	
 ��	��������	���	0���-	���"���	�
	
�����	1�����#	�/���	� 	)������%	���	�����	������	�*���"	����������%	��������	���	
������-	 ��	���
	�����					
	
����������	�������
	���4����	���4��	 ��	��������	���	0���-	���"��%	����������	���	
"��"�
��
	(����	"�������	�	����
"�����	
�����	� 	����-������						
	
�����	������	����
��	��4����	���4��
	����	���	-���������	���	�������	���	����
����
	 ��	
����
���	�����-	���	���	"��"�
��	(����	
"���	�"	����	"����

�		
	
�����������	�"����
	���
������	���	���
��
	 ��	���	����
���	@	
	
�
	
��	���	��	���	��"����		
		
�-����	����	���	����
���	�����-	��������#	��-�����-	���	������
	)�����-	)������	�
	
����-����	��	���	�

�
����	��������	 ��	
���������	+������-	���	)����#	��""���	��	
���
��������	(���	���	��#�����	������
	)����	���	��4����	���4��	 ��	��������	���	0���-	
���"���	��
	

����  �	��%��������- ����+����	���
	
�����	&��

���	�.������	��������	 ��	���"�����	�������
%	
�4������	�	��"���	��	���	
"�����"��	� 	�������-	�	"�4���	
�����	
�����	
������
	���"��#	E�
+&=	���	���	����
 ��	� 	
��#�����	���#	�������	.�&	
������
	��	���
	���"��#�			
�
&��	��"���	���������	����	 ����(��-	�""�����	� 	��	�������	4�
���

	��
��	��4�����	��	)�4����#	
56:9�	�""�����	���	������"����	� 	�	��������	4�
���

	��
�	��	4�	(�����	�"	4��(���	���	
"��"�
��	"������
	�������	:7F	�:5G:9%	�� �����%�			
	
&��	��������	$�
���

	��
�	(�
	��
�	
�4������	
�����-	���	���	4�
�
	 ��	�
��4��
���-	�	��(	
C����	�������	���"��#�	��	
����	��	���	 ��
�	��
�����	.�&�	����

	"�4���	
�����	"������
�			
	
	

Page 7



.���"������	�����(
	� 	���	4�
���

	��
��	���	4�����#	
�""�����	���	�""�����	4��	����	��	
�����	����	�	���-�	������	� 	(���	(����	4�	����

��#	4� ���	�	
����

 ��	�
+&	�"�������	
�����	
����	���	���
	(����	4�	�����

��	�����-	���	���	����-����	���	��"�����������	
"������-	"������	
	
&��	��"���	������ ���	"��-��

�	���	�������	
����
	��	��
�
�	���	�

��"����
	� 	���	�
+&	
$�
���

	��
��	
	
���	*(#��	�/���	� 	.�&%	���	����
	2������	�������-��	)������	����-��%	��������	���	
������-	 ��	���
	�����	
	
.�	���	�4
����	� 	����������	+�(�#	���4����	���4��	 ��	)������%�	����������	�����	�����	
���"��#	+�����%	����������	���	��"���	���	���������	����	!	
	

��%	 ���
�	 "��"�
��
	 (���	 4���-	 
�4������	 ��	 ���	 �������	  ���	 "������	
��-���
�����
	C�����-	���	
�����	
�������	�����#	@		

		 
�
�	�����	��
�����	�������	
		 
,����	���#	�������		
		 1�
���	�����	��������	�����

�����-	*���"	
	� ��#�����	���#	�������	
	� &��-�4���-�	��
�����	�������	

�4%	 ���	 ����-����	 (����	 4�	 ����������	 ��	 ���	 "�����	  ���	 '���4��	
56:9	��	�"���	56:7<					

��%	
		


�4C���	 ��	 �	 
���
 �����#	 ��������	 
������	 �����	 �-�������
	 (����	
4�	 ���(�	 �"	 ���	 
��  	 ���	 �

��
	 (����	 ����	 ����
 ��	 ��	 ���	 ��(	
��-���
������			

	
��4����	���4��
	���������	����	���	"������	��-���
�����
	�����	4�	�,������	��	�������	
���	"�����	���	����	���	"��"�
��
	
�����	4�	"��-��

��	�
	
���	�
	"�

�4��	��	�����	��	
-�������	���	��,����	
����-
�		
	
�����������	�"����
	���
������	���	���
��
	 ��	���	����
���	@	
	
�
	
��	���	��	���	��"����		
		
�-����	����	@	
		

�:%	 �  ����
	���������	���	����-����	���������-	��� ��������	����	���	
�
+&	�"������-	�����	��������	��	���	(������	��"���	"������
	4�
�	
�����	 ��	���	��������#%�	���	��"�����������	"������-<				

�5%	 ���4��
	����	���	����"�	���	�
�������	����������	��
�
	� 	
��"�����������	���	�-���	����	���
�	���	4����	����	���	�������	
4��-��	
�����-	"����

<		

	

Page 8



�9%	
		

���	 ����	����
���	��	"������	�
	����-����	��	���	��"��#	+������	
��������-	�(���	� 	��������	4��(���	���	�������	���	�
+&�	��	
���
��������	(���	���	��4����	���4��	 ��	)������	���	���	.������	
��������	 ��	���"�����	�������
	���	
����

��%�	&��
	�
	"�������-	
����	��	���
	���	�,����	:8	"��	����	� 	�����	�,"��������	�
�������	
��	 �����
�	
����-
	���	:8	"��	����	��

	����	���������	��	���
	��"���<	
���	"�������-	����	���	��-���	� 	��
��	�
	����
��	4#	�  ����
�	� 	
"��������-	� ���	���	���"������	� 	���	����-����	���	��"�����������	
"������-	�
	����"��4���	

	
���� �.�"�	�&#� �������

	
�-����	����	�����	�������	:66��%�7%	� 	���	+����	*���������	����	:DF5�	���	"��

	���	
"�4���	���	�,������	 ���	���	������-	 ��	���	 ����(��-	����	� 	4�
���

	��	���	-�����
	����	
��	�������
	���	�����#	��
���
���	� 	�,��"�	�� ��������	�
	�� ����	��	"���-��"�	9	� 	����	:	� 	
��������	:5�	� 	���	����	�
	�������	4#	���	)������	� 	.� ��������	���	5666���
	

�
�� �% �����)�����	���&#� �������������*+�����/��0���
	

)������	��	������	85	�4����	������	$��-�#��	���������	 ��	���"��%	
�4������	�	"������	
��"���	��	�����������#	
��
�����	 ��������	������
	�������-	��	���	"��"�
��	 ��	���	�������#	� 	
��������=
	������
�			��
	
	
	
	

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Cabinet 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 
Subject:    The Plan for Homes 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    12 November 2013 

Cabinet Member:   Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member:   Anthony Payne (Director for Place) 

Author: Paul Barnard, Assistant Director for Planning Services 

Contact details:   Tel: 01752 304305 
    email: paul.barnard@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    PFH/Cab 

Key Decision:   Yes  

Part: I   
 
Purpose of the report:  
 
The report seeks to establish a programme of initiatives to help achieve a step change in the delivery 
of homes within Plymouth.  The Plan for Homes aims to bring forward 1,000 homes per annum over 
the next 5 years to address the severe housing needs within the city and to support the growth 
agenda. 
 
The report also seeks agreement to include within the Capital Programme a significant Affordable 
Housing Loan Facility and to the release of further city-council-owned sites in support of The Plan for 
Homes and the delivery of more affordable homes. 
 
The report also sets out 16 initiatives around finance, land, infrastructure, community engagement 
and leadership which are aimed at increasing housing delivery over the next 5 years. 
         
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 -2016/17:   
 
On 22nd July 2013 the Corporate Plan was agreed with a specific commitment to create more 
decent homes to support the population.  This included reference to The Plan for Homes being 
developed alongside the Plymouth Housing Development Partnership in support of “Growing 
Plymouth”.   
 
The Plan for Homes will also support other aspects of the Corporate Plan, for example supporting 
the provision of accommodation for older people and specialist accessible and wheelchair housing as 
part of delivering a range and mix of new, greener homes. 
 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mgInternet/documents/s48110/Corporate%20Plan%20Full%20Council%2
022.07.13.pdf 

Agenda Item 6Page 11



Cabinet 

          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land: 
 
The establishment of a significant loan facility up to a potential £50 million, subject to due diligence, 
to support affordable housing delivery over the next 5 years will need to be included within the 
capital programme and give regard to the overall borrowing cap for the city council’s capital 
resources.  The release of council owned sites for housing development will need to give appropriate 
consideration to obtaining value for money from the sites taking account of the housing outcomes 
sought. 
 
In addition, the Plan for Homes is consistent with the recently agreed Transformation Programme: in 
particular the concept of a Plymouth Growth Dividend within the Growth and Municipal Enterprise 
theme. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management: 
 
The provision of greener homes will address issues of child poverty and, alongside better designed 
homes, support higher educational attainment.  The central risk to the Plan for Homes remains the 
general economic climate which can be addressed through the suite of initiatives the City Council is 
pursuing to support Plymouth’s economy.  The continued resistance to new housing also remains 
one of the highest risks, which can be addressed by the City Council supporting the “Yes to Homes” 
campaign. There are risks associated with the capacity and capability of the development industry to 
build at higher levels.  There are also risks in connection with the operational details of the 
Affordable Housing Loan Facility in relation to state aid, the establishment of clear and transparent 
loan criteria, including the approach to defaults, and the management and administration of the loans.  
These risks can be mitigated by developing the governance arrangements of the existing Plymouth 
Housing Development Partnership and having clear loan protocols before any funding is released. 
 
 

Equality and Diversity: 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?  No 
  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is recommended Cabinet: 
 

1. Approve the Plan for Homes as set out in the report. 
 
Reason: To meet the Corporate Plan commitment to produce the Plan for Homes. 
 

2. Recommend that the City Council include the Plan for Homes within the Capital Programme 
from 2014/2015 until 2019/2020 with an allocation of up to £50 million (subject to due 
diligence) in support of the affordable housing loan facility to the Plymouth Housing 
Partnership. 
 
Reason: To provide sufficient funding to support the acceleration of affordable housing 
delivery. 
 

Page 12



Cabinet 

3. Delegate to the Assistant Director for Planning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance, the identification of city council-owned sites in support of the Plan for Homes. 
 
Reason: To ensure that sufficient sites are identified to meet the ambition to deliver 1,000 
homes per annum. 
 

4. Welcome the support from the Working Plymouth Panel for the strategy of the Plan for 
Homes. 
 
Reason: To respond to the recommendations of the Working Plymouth Panel who 
considered the Plan for Homes on 25th September 2013. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
 
Option 1: Continue with the Get Plymouth Building Programme – this 2-3 year initiative is aimed at 
maintaining the momentum of housing delivery in the city through 8 proactive planning and housing 
initiatives and in and of itself would be insufficient to address the full housing needs of the city as set 
out in the Corporate Plan. 
 
Option 2: Leave the private sector to deliver more homes – past experience of delivery rates 
indicates that this would be insufficient to meet the city’s needs and so therefore a more 
transformational approach is required. 
 
Published work / information: 
 

“Review of Housing Supply: Delivering Stability: Securing Our Future Housing Needs”, HMSO, March 
2004.   

See: http://image.guardian.co.uk/sys-files/Guardian/documents/2004/03/17/Barker.pdf  

“Culcutt Review: The Culcutt Review of Housebuilding Delivery”, CLG, November 2007. See: 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20070130001032/http:/callcuttreview.co.uk/downloads/callc
uttreview_221107.pdf  

“Increasing Housing Supply”, CLG Housing Markets and Planning Expert Panel, CLG, July 2008. See: 
http://www.henley.reading.ac.uk/web/FILES/REP/Increasing_housing_supply_land_assembly_final_2.pdf  

“Bringing Democracy Home”, The Commission on Cooperative and Mutual Housing, 2009.  

See: http://www.cds.coop/about-us/publications/bringing-democracy-home  

“Mind the Gap – Housing Supply in a Cold Climate”, Town and Country Planning Association, 
September 2009.  

See: http://www.smith-institute.org.uk/file/MindtheGapHousingSupplyinaColdClimate.pdf  

“Build Now or Pay Later?: Funding New Housing Supply”, IPPR, October 2011.  

See: http://www.ippr.org/images/media/files/publication/2011/10/build-now-pay-
later_Oct2011_8116.pdf  

Page 13



Cabinet 

“Laying the Foundations – A Housing Strategy for England”, HMSO, November 2011.  

See: https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7532/2033676.pdf  

“Yes to Homes”, National Housing Federation Campaign, October 2012.  

See: http://www.yestohomes.co.uk/  

“Plan C for Cities”, Centre for Cities, November 2012.  

See: http://www.centreforcities.org/assets/files/2012/12-11-22_WEB_Plan_C.pdf  

“Housing in Later Life: Planning Ahead for Specialist Housing for Older People”, National Housing 
Federation, December 2012.  

See: 
http://www.housinglin.org.uk/_library/Resources/Housing/Support_materials/Toolkit/Housing_in_Late
r_Life_Toolkit.pdf  

“International Review of Land Supply and Planning Systems”, Joseph Rowntree Foundation, March 
2013. See: http://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/files/jrf/land-supply-planning-full.pdf  

“Innovative Financing of Affordable Housing: International and UK Perspectives”, Joseph Rowntree 
Foundation, March 2013. See: http://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/files/jrf/affordable-housing-finance-full.pdf  

“Delivering Large Scale Housing: Unlocking Schemes and Sites to meet the UK’s Housing Needs”, 
Royal Town Planning Institute, September 2013.  

See: http://rtpi.org.uk/media/630969/RTPI%20large%20scale%20housing%20report.pdf  
 
Strategic Housing Market Needs Assessment, GVA, July 2013.  
See: http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/strategic_housing_market_needs_assessment.pdf 
 

 
 
Background papers: 
 
None 
 

 
 

Sign off:   
 

Fin mc 
1314
20 

Leg JAR/1
8546/
Sept2
013 

Mon 
Off 

DS 
18598
/DVS 

HR N/A Assets  JW0
017 

IT N/A Strat 
Proc 

N/A 

Originating SMT Member: Paul Barnard, Assistant Director for Planning 
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the content of the report?  Yes  

Page 14



Cabinet 

 
1.0 Background 

 
1.1 On 18th July 2013 the Plan for Homes was announced by Councillor Mark Lowry, Cabinet 

Member for Finance with responsibility for housing delivery.  The Plan for Homes is one of 
the key initiatives agreed as part of the new Corporate Plan on 22nd July 2013. It seeks to 
facilitate a transformational step change in housing delivery in Plymouth.  

 
1.2 Detailed research has been undertaken into how housing supply can be accelerated.  This has 

involved considering national and international research. In addition there have been 
numerous meetings with partners to explore ideas for improving housing supply in Plymouth.  
The Plan for Homes draws upon this research and these discussions to bring forward a radical 
set of initiatives that will deliver more homes. 

 
1.3 The Plan for Homes is a 5 year initiative to transform the acceleration of homes in Plymouth.  

The lessons learnt from its implementation will be fed into the preparation of the Plymouth 
Plan.  In particular issues such as the future role of cooperative housing, the development of 
new delivery mechanisms, such as those being developed under Community Land Trust 
models, the role of the private rented sector, and future models for affordable rent to meet 
vulnerable and other groups in most need will be explored.  In addition, the on-going 
challenges of equity release to allow coordinated downsizing so homes are released to better 
meet defined needs and enabling people to stay in their own homes for longer need to be 
considered by the Plymouth Plan.  The Action Plans from the previous Housing Plan will 
address some of these issues in the short term whilst new policy approaches are being 
formulated in the Plymouth Plan.  

 
2.0  Why do we need the Plan for Homes? 
 
2.1 Despite some creative planning and development initiatives undertaken by the City Council 

over the last decade since the David Mackay Vision for Plymouth was launched in November 
2003, housing supply still lags behind the need, especially for those in the most acute housing 
circumstances.  The shortage of new homes keeps house prices artificially high and pushes up 
mortgage and deposit costs.  Plymouth therefore needs more housing for sale or rent at 
prices people can afford. In Plymouth, the lowest available affordable homes still require 6.3 
times the average salary. 

 
2.2 Plymouth is relatively distinct regionally and nationally in housing terms.  It has a low wage 

economy with 20% of working people earning less than £15,000 per annum and 50% less than 
£23,000 per annum – resulting in housing affordability issues.  Plymouth also has higher than 
national and regional incidence of homelessness as a percentage of population and very 
significant demand from people in housing need with more complex needs. 
 

Page 15



Cabinet 

 
2.3 Customers seeking housing advice have increased 52% over the past 12 months. Currently 

there are over 10,000 applicants on the waiting list with 30% less lettings becoming available 
to meet general housing needs.  Over 2,500 of these are in priority housing need (bands A-C). 

 
2.4 Compared to the national and regional context, there are higher levels of social rented homes 

(20%), higher levels of private rented housing (20%) with huge variations in quality, standards 
and affordability together with lower levels of owner-occupation.  There are increasing 
demands for a greater range of elderly accommodation.  Many elderly people, who may be 
asset rich and cash poor, are increasingly living in the worst conditions resulting in higher 
health and social care costs. 

 
2.5 Plymouth has 14,000 households living in fuel poverty, many living in older homes that are 

hard to heat.  Innovative programmes under the Energy Company Obligation and the creation 
of a cooperative Plymouth Energy Community will help address these issues alongside a 
review of planning policies under the Core Strategy review (the Plymouth Plan). 

 
2.6 There are substantial regeneration programmes underway (North Prospect is the largest in 

the south west) with no clear investment strategy from Government after 2015, the funding 
model having changed with over 65% reductions in the national Affordable Housing 
Programme. Decanting of local people from these regeneration projects results in higher 
demands on limited social housing, increasing competition for available lets. 
 

2.7 As a result of the spare room subsidy there is a further growth in demand, especially for one-
bed accommodation, and this is having severe impacts on the well-being of people affected by 
this national policy change.   

 
2.8 There is also a need to support additional family homes and executive homes to meet the 

long-term future housing needs of the city.  Moreover, there will be a continuing need to 
support purpose-built student homes in response to expected student numbers at Plymouth 
further and higher education establishments.  With the ageing population, the need to provide 
additional extra care facilities will also increase. 

Page 16



Cabinet 

 
 

 
2.9 So, whilst Plymouth has had a good track record of delivery of affordable homes, and housing 

in general, this is set against huge reductions in capital funding for new homes and private 
sector housing renewal.  The Plymouth Core Strategy established a target of 3,300 affordable 
homes by 2021. The city is on target to achieve this target with 2,003 affordable homes having 
been delivered between 2006 and 2013. 

 

Page 17



Cabinet 

2.10 The average number of dwellings delivered in the last 3 years is 572. Progress has been made 
in 2012/2013 with this rising to nearly 700 dwellings, with housing starts up by 23% since 
2011/2012.  However in the last 25 years delivery of over 1,000 homes per annum has only 
been achieved on 3 occasions: and so the scale of the ambition to achieve this number of 
homes, pursuant to growing Plymouth’s population to over 300,000 by 2031, requires radical 
delivery solutions.  
 

 
3.0 The Plan for Homes 
 
3.1 Whilst increased housing momentum is being achieved through the Get Plymouth Building 

programme, that seeks to bring forward over 2,000 homes in the next 2-3 years, nevertheless 
there needs to be a step change in future housing delivery if Plymouth is to achieve its 
ambitious growth agenda and address known housing needs.  Work has therefore started on 
a very ambitious programme of housing development which will involve more homes coming 
forward in the next 5 years.  This will see further City Council-owned sites being released and 
also new innovative models of funding being developed. . 

 
3.2 The Plan for Homes will bring together landowners, developers, registered providers, local 

communities, ward councillors and planners in a cooperative approach to deliver the 
affordable and other homes Plymouth people need. An important component of the Plan for 
Homes will be a significant expansion of the programme of city council land releases with the 
intention being the release of over 100 acres of city council-owned land immediately and for 
the next 5 years.  It is intended that there will be a phased release of sites starting in 

Page 18



Cabinet 

December 2013 in the same way as the Get Plymouth Building programme which allowed for 
a streamlined planning and disposal process to enable housing developments to commence 
faster than would have normally been possible. 

 
3.3 On 5th August 2013 a workshop was held with all the Registered Providers in the city through 

the Plymouth Housing Development Partnership, to explore what could be done to create a 
step change in housing delivery. Many ideas were generated and some of these have been 
incorporated in the final plan.   

 
3.4 The Plan draws upon the latest research and analysis as to how housing supply could be 

accelerated.  It draws heavily on the cooperative values and objectives of the Corporate Plan 
as to how it has been designed and how it will be implemented.  The Plan for Homes has been 
structured around 5 main areas of activity: 
 
• Finance – creatively using local authority resources to support housing projects in 

Plymouth. As the implementation of the plan proceeds new models for cooperative 
housing could potentially be supported through these provisions. 

 
• Land – making substantial amounts of City Council land available in the most streamlined 

and targeted way possible to achieve more affordable and greener homes together with 
other policy objectives. The Plan for Homes will need to manage the phased release of 
land in support of the Core Strategy and future Plymouth Plan policy objectives. 

 
• Infrastructure – proactively working with institutional investors to support housing 

projects in Plymouth and aligning our own strategic planning processes through a 
Plymouth Infrastructure Prospectus.  The Plan for Homes will align with the new approach 
to the management of the capital programme. 

 
• Community Engagement – continuing the proactive dialogue (started under the 

Plymouth Plan) with local ward councillors and local communities on identifying 
appropriate sites for housing.  Through Neighbourhood Plans, but also existing and 
emerging neighbourhood engagement approaches, it will be important that communities 
are engaged in debates about what type of housing is needed.  

 
• Leadership – the City Council continuing to show proactive and positive strategic 

leadership the housing agenda in advocating the need for more homes to meet the needs 
of future generations. 

Page 19



Cabinet 

 
3.5 The overall ambition of the Plan for Homes is to increase housing supply by 1,000 homes per 

annum through 16 initiatives: 
 

 

The Plan for Homes 
 
Finance 

 
1. We will create an Affordable Housing Loan Facility of up to £50 million to the 

Plymouth Housing Development Partnership. 

 
2. We will waive planning pre-application fees for all self-build projects, Code Level 

4, 5 and 6 schemes and for affordable housing developments that meet our policy 
requirements. 

 
3. Where appropriate, we will consider more flexible land and Section 106 

payments to improve development cash flows to support a start on site by an agreed 
date. 

 
4. Where the objective of sustainable linked communities is not prejudiced within a 

particular neighbourhood, we will consider off-site affordable housing 
contributions to unlock stalled sites, provided developers commit to starting on site 
by an agreed date. 

 
Land 

 
5. We will work with the development industry to complete a Strategic Housing 

Land Availability Assessment to identify sites to substantially increase the supply 
of housing with planning permission. 

 
6. We will release over 100 acres of land for housing by completing a Strategic Land 

Review by March 2014 to identify every possible city council-owned site suitable for 
housing development.  We commit to release these sites in phases and as quickly as 
possible. 

 
7. We will develop a “flagship” scheme on a city council-owned site to encourage 

innovation and greater input from Registered Providers. 
 
 

8. We will create a dedicated Sherford Delivery Team to enable a start on site at 
Sherford in 2014. 

 

Page 20



Cabinet 

9. We will incentivise the delivery of city centre housing by creating a ‘city centre 
density bonus’ in order to provide more homes, as well as encouraging a broader 
mix of house types including one-bed properties. 

 
10. We will make more city council-owned land available for self-build and establish a 

streamlined planning process to deal with subsequent planning applications. 
 
 

Infrastructure 
 

11. We will work with institutional investors to attract new investment into 
infrastructure for housing within Plymouth and consider how a “build now pay later” 
scheme could support housing delivery. 

 

12. We will develop a Local Infrastructure Prospectus to support future 
infrastructure provision to support housing and regeneration projects. 

 
 

Community Engagement 
 

13. We will use the Neighbourhood Plans process in conjunction with local 
communities to identify sites for homes to meet local needs. 

 
 

14. We will appoint a Relationship Manager for each Registered Provider and large 
developers to encourage further investments in Plymouth and work more closely with 
local communities. 

 
 
Leadership 

 
15. We will support the “Yes to Homes” campaign and proactively make the case for 

additional accelerated housing to meet Plymouth’s needs. 
 
 

16. We will seek a step change in housing investment by developing partnership, joint 
venture and new funding models with the Plymouth Housing Development 
Partnership. 

 
 

Page 21



Cabinet 

 
3.6 The concept of the Affordable Housing Loan Facility draws upon experiences from other local 

authorities who have used their own borrowing powers to support accelerated affordable 
housing delivery.   This would work by the City Council borrowing at low rates through the 
Public Works Loan Board and then, subject to due diligence, clear loan criteria and individual 
loan scrutiny, making loans available to the 10 registered providers who make the Plymouth 
Housing Development Partnership, at rates that are preferential compared to what can be 
sourced through traditional development finance routes.  This will make more development 
finance available to partners who will then be able to build more homes more quickly.  The 
approach will also help with the overall viability of development proposals as the costs of 
finance will be reduced.   

 
3.7 Having undertaken soundings of the registered providers in the Plymouth Housing 

Development Partnership, and taking account of the overall ambition of the Plan for Homes, a 
loan facility of up to £50 million over 5 years should enable a step change in delivery to be 
achieved, when considered alongside the other initiatives. 

 
3.8  The other finance measures are aimed at stimulating the completion of many projects that 

already have planning permission. 
 
3.9 The land measures are a continuation of the innovative approach to land releases that the 

City Council has already started under the Get Plymouth Building programme – but on a 
larger scale. This has already stimulated development activity in the city and has been well 
received by the development community. 

 
 
3.10 The infrastructure measures seek to continue the exploration of innovative funding models, 

especially in relation to the delivery of affordable housing, in order to attract higher levels of 
investment into the city.  The intention is to also better align this with wider infrastructure 
planning through the development of a Local Investment Prospectus which will bring together 
all the key strategic projects in the city. 

 
 
3.11 The community engagement measures are designed to engage ward councillors and local 

communities in a continuing discussion regarding where new housing may be located to meet 
local needs and the wider needs of the city.  This will feed into the development of future 
housing policies in the Plymouth Plan.  In addition, and responding to the specific 
recommendations of the Working Plymouth Scrutiny Panel, the role of neighbourhood plans 
in generating new housing opportunities can be explored. It is also proposed to identify a 
“relationship” manager for all the Registered Providers developing in Plymouth as well as 
active major developers so that an “account management” approach can be taken forward to 
ensure that transport, land and other delivery issues are addressed in a joined up way to help 
facilitate accelerated delivery of homes. 

Page 22



Cabinet 

 
3.12 Finally, the leadership measures are aimed at raising awareness through the “Yes to Homes” 

Campaign and ensuring that having put the partners in the Plymouth Housing Development 
Partnership at the centre of this Plan for Homes programme that individually and collectively 
they now help achieve the step change in delivery now required to meet Plymouth’s future 
housing needs. 
 

4.0 Working Plymouth Panel 
 
4.1 The Plan for Homes was presented to the Working Plymouth Panel on 25th September 2013. 

The Panel welcomed the strategy behind the Plan for Homes and asked for further 
consideration to be given to the role of neighbourhood planning in delivering more homes. 

 
4.2 In response it is suggested that Cabinet welcome the support of the Working Plymouth Panel 

and include within the Plan for Homes a specific initiative around the use of the neighbourhood 
plans process, in conjunction with local communities, to identify sites for homes to meet local needs. 

 

5.0 Conclusion 
 
5.1 The Plan for Homes represents a radical response to the housing challenges facing the city 

and provides a comprehensive delivery framework to respond to the second biggest (after job 
creation) and long term issue facing Plymouth: namely the quality and supply of new housing.  
The Plan for Homes will deliver more homes that are greener and, alongside the development 
of new strategic housing policies in the emerging Plymouth Plan, transform housing within the 
city. 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
Subject: Fees, Charges and Concessions Policy 

 

Committee: Cabinet 
 

Date: 12 November 2013 
 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member: Malcolm Coe, Assistant Director, Finance, Efficiencies, Technology 

and Assets 

Authors: David Northey, Head of Finance 

Contact details Tel:  01752 305428 
email: david.northey@plymouth.gov.uk 

 

Ref: 
 

Key Decision: Yes 
 
Part: I 

 

 
Purpose of the report: 

 
We are introducing an over-arching Fees, Charges and Concessions policy. The objective is for this 
to be an over-arching framework which details our principles and approach to charging against 
which each individual proposal to amend, or introduce, charges should be challenged. 

 

 
The purpose of this policy is to provide a clear statement of Plymouth City Council’s 
corporate approach to fees and charges incorporating concessions. 

 

 
This policy sets out the principles that the Council will use when levying a charge for services that 
we provide and why we are doing so. It will ensure we adopt a consistent and fair approach to fees 
and charges, and that they are used to deliver the Council’s overall objectives whilst protecting, 
wherever possible, the most vulnerable citizens of Plymouth. It also sets a direction of travel about 
principles to be used when waiving charges and the conditions that will be applied in these 
circumstances. 

 
 
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 – 2016/17: 

 

Plymouth City Council, as a Co-operative Council, is committed to the highest possible standards of 
openness and accountability. This policy is driven by our co-operative values. By adopting a 
Corporate Fees & Charges and Concessions Policy, Plymouth City Council is committing to ensuring 
a consistent approach to how we charge individual customers and community groups for 
discretionary services and goods that are provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including finance, human, IT and land 

This policy will act as the control document for all future changes to fees and charges levied 
by the Council, or changes to its concessions policy. Financial implications will become 
apparent as each charge is reviewed and changed. 

 

 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety 
and Risk Management: 

This policy will ensure we adopt a consistent and fair approach to fees and charges, and that 
they are used to deliver the Council’s overall objectives whilst protecting, wherever 
possible, the most vulnerable citizens of Plymouth. 

 
Equality and Diversity 

An effective and consistent approach to our fees and charges, and concessions will ensure 
we treat all members of our society as equals. 

 
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 

1. That Cabinet approve the revised Fees, Charges and Concessions Policy. 
 

To enable all departments to undertake a consistent review of the fees, charges, 
and concessions within their department. 

 
2.  That the Leader’s Scheme of Delegation is amended to reflect the delegations.  
 
 To ensure that the scheme reflects current delegations.     

 
 

Alternative options considered and rejected: 

Remain unchanged and continue to have a lack of clarity around our charging policy. 
 

Published work / information: 

Background papers: 
n/a 

 

 
Sign off: 

 

 

Fin mc1314.2
1 

Leg TH0131 Mon 
Off 

TH01
30 

HR  Assets  IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Malcolm Coe 
Have the Cabinet Members agreed the contents of the report? Yes 

Page 26



FEES, CHARGES AND 
CONCESSIONS POLICY 

 

(October 2013) 
 

 
Policy 

 
The purpose of this policy is to provide a clear statement of Plymouth City Council’s corporate 
approach to fees and charges incorporating concessions. 

 

Plymouth City Council, as a Co-operative Council, is committed to the highest possible standards 
of openness and accountability. This policy is driven by our co-operative values. By adopting a 
Corporate Fees, Charges and Concessions Policy, Plymouth City Council is committing to ensuring 
a consistent approach to how we charge individual customers and community groups for 
discretionary services and goods that are provided. 

 

This policy sets out the principles that the Council will use when levying a charge for services that 
we provide and why we are doing so. It will ensure we adopt a consistent and fair approach to fees 
and charges, and that they are used to deliver the Council’s overall objectives whilst protecting, 
wherever possible, the most vulnerable citizens of Plymouth. It also sets a direction of travel about 
principles to be used when waiving charges and the conditions that will be applied in these 
circumstances. 

 

In Scope 
 
All statutory and discretionary fees and charges levied by Plymouth City Council, and all 
associated concessions. 

 

Key Principles 
 
The Council’s fees and charges, (and concessions against these charges), will be driven by our 
core values and set in accordance with the following general principles: 

 

Democratic 
 

• We will fully engage and inform service users in relation to any introduction of, or 
changes to, charging arrangements wherever practical and feasible to do so; 

• Elected members of the Council will approve the over-arching fees, charges and 
concessions arrangements, with changes to specific charges overseen by the relevant 
portfolio holder; 

• Where an organisation has any fee or charge waived, a Service Level Agreement 
should be drawn up detailing how the organisation will contribute towards our 
corporate vision and values and/or objectives and outcomes 

 
Responsible 

 

• On-going fees and charges will, in general, be up-lifted in line with the Consumer Price 
Index, (CPI); 

• The Council will seek to recover relevant full costs in setting charges from those 
who are deemed able to pay; 

• The level of Fees and Charges is the responsibility of each Assistant Director, 
(supported by Finance), and will be reviewed, as and when appropriate, in 
conjunction with the Portfolio Holder; 

Page 27



Fees, Charges and Concessions Policy (October 2013) page 2  

Fair  

 
• We will be open and honest with who we charge, what we charge, and why we charge 

and, at all times, champion fairness; 
• We will consider an individual’s ability to pay, accounting for income and access to 

means tested benefits (Disability Living Allowance, Attendance Allowance and Personal 
Independence Payments not to be counted as means tested benefits for concessions 
purpose); 

• Wherever possible, we will give consideration to, and protect, the most vulnerable 
sections of the community; 

• Concessions will be applied consistently and fairly and applied to agreed criteria; 
• Charging must give due consideration, and be proportionate, to the costs 

associated with administering and collecting income. 
 

Partners 
 

• We will provide strong community leadership and work together to deliver our 
common ambition; 

• When setting Fees and Charges, we will take into account market forces, the cost 
of service provision, including direct and indirect cost, and how we compare with 
peer and local neighbour authorities. 

 

 
FEES and CHARGES 
 

 

Statutory Charges 
 

These are regulated by primary and secondary legislation and include very broad service areas 
such as adult social care, children's services, licensing, planning and many more. The level of 
charge is regulated in terms of how much can be charged. The statute will also, more often than 
not, specify with whom needs to be consulted, and for how long, before any decision is taken to 
increase the fees. 
 

 

Discretionary Charges 
 

The provisions of the Local Government and Finance Act 2003, (Section 93), state that fees can 
only be levied on a cost recovery basis. Such costs should include indirect costs and overheads 
along with any investment required to retain, or improve, assets or infrastructure associated with 
providing services. Accounting for future financial liabilities can also be considered where relevant. 
 

 

Setting Fees and Charges 
 

Fees and charges can be reviewed and updated at any reasonable point in time within prescribed 
levels of delegated authority. The following limits apply to estimated additional income that will 
be levied as a result of implementing a proposed change to a specific service charge: 

 

• Assistant Directors can take decisions that will raise additional income up to £100k 
(any individual variance to charges of +/- 5% must be agreed with Portfolio Holder) 

 

• Portfolio holder can take decisions to raise additional income from £100k to £500k. 
 

• Cabinet can take decisions to raise additional income over £500k (A key decision) 
 

 

Page 28



Fees, Charges and Concessions Policy (October 2013) page 3  

Subsidised Services 
 

Plymouth City Council will sometimes choose not to seek full recovery of its costs if the resultant 
charges would go against our core values as a Brilliant Co-operative Council. For example, the 
Council might not set charges for the use of its leisure facilities at a level which would discourage 
active participation in swimming. 

 
 
 

DISCRETIONARY CONCESSIONS 
A discretionary concession may be applied to fees and charges to certain individuals, or groups, 
based on criteria that supports our corporate priorities and complies with the key principles in 
this document. Concessions can be applied to the following Customer categories: 

 
 

Customer categories for which concessions can be granted: 
 

1. Junior (16 and under) or students in full time education within the City; 
 

2. People on means tested benefits (together with their spouses and partners). Any 
income from spouses/partners is taken into consideration when determining means 
tested benefits.  Means tested benefits counted for concession purposes are: 

 

a. Income support 
 

b. Job Seekers Allowance (income based) 
 

c. Working Tax Credit 

d. C h i l d Tax Credit 

e. Pension Credit 
 

f.  Housing Benefit 
 

g. Council Tax Support 
 

h. Employment Support Allowance (income based) 
 

 
Note: Disability Living Allowance, (DLA), Attendance Allowance, (AA),and Personal 
Independence Payments (PIP) are not counted as means tested benefits for 
concession purposes. 

 

 
3. Pensioners. Defined as those in receipt of a state pension. Income from occupational 

pensions needs to be considered in terms of an individual’s ability to pay. 
 
 

4. Group concessions maybe available in exceptional circumstances where they 
significantly contribute towards the Council’s values and corporate priorities. 

 

 
 
As a general principle, when applying a concession, every service user should make a minimum 
contribution towards the total cost of their service provision, (including overheads), in line with 
the principles used within the Council’s Council Tax Support Scheme and Discretionary Rates 
Relief Policy. 

 

October 2013(revised) 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



1  

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject: Corporate Monitoring Report as at 30 September 2013 

(including capital schemes / programme approvals) 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    12 November 2013 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member:   CMT 

Author: John Bougeard, Group Accountant 

Contact details   Tel:  01752 30 4421 
    email: John.Bougeard@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    fin/JB002 

Key Decision: No  
 
Part: I    

 
Purpose of the report:  
 
This report is the second quarterly monitoring report for 2013/14 and outlines the finance   
monitoring position of the Council as at the end of September 2013. 
 
The primary purpose of this report is to detail how the Council is delivering against its financial 
measures using its capital and revenue resources, and to approve relevant budget variations and 
virements, and the approval of new schemes to the capital programme. 
 
The forecasted revenue overspend is £1.522m which is an improvement of £0.370m compared 
to the June 2013 report. The current estimated position shows an overspend of £1.114m in the 
People Directorate, an overspend of £0.464m in the Place Directorate, and an underspend of 
£(0.056)m in Corporate Items.  This equates to a forecast net spend of £214.082m against a 
budget of £212.560m, which is a variance of 0.7%, although officers and members are working 
on actions to deliver a balanced outturn. As we have now reached the mid point in the year, red 
delivery plans have been incorporated in the revenue monitoring position. 
 
The capital programme approved by Council in February 2013 covering 2013/14 to 2015/16 
stood at £122.670m. Following approval of new schemes, re-profiling and variations, the capital 
programme increased to £159.903m as at the end of June 2013 (as reported in the quarter one 
monitoring report). The latest forecast at the end of September 2013, is £162.484m, which 
includes increases approved at Council in September, other delegated officer approvals, and 
assumes the approval of the recommendations for new schemes/scheme increases contained in 
this report. 
         
 
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 -2016/17:   
 
This quarterly report is fundamentally linked to delivering the priorities within the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. Allocating limited resources to key priorities will maximise the benefits to the 
residents of Plymouth. 
          

Agenda Item 8Page 31



2  

 
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Robust and accurate financial monitoring underpins the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Forecast is updated regularly based on on-going 
monitoring information, both on a local and national context. 
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management: 
 
The reducing revenue and capital resources across the public sector has been identified as a key 
risk within our Strategic Risk register. The ability to deliver spending plans is paramount to 
ensuring the Council can achieve its objectives to be a Pioneering, Growing, Caring and 
Confident City. 
 

 
Equality and Diversity: 
 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken: No   
 

 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
That Cabinet:- 
 

1. Note the revenue monitoring position and actions being taken 
 

2. Approve the revenue budget virements as set out on page 10 
 

3. Note the increase in the medium term capital programme forecast to £162.484m  
 

4. Approve the new capital schemes indicated in table A totaling £0.881m and recommend 
to Council the increase to existing schemes totaling £0.627m  

 
5. Note the Human Resources & Organisational Development Data 

 
 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Actions are recommended in response to specific variances in finances identified throughout the 
report. 

 
Published work / information: 
 
2013/14 Budget Book Plymouth City Council – Budget Book 
2013/14 Budget Scrutiny Plymouth City Council – Budget Scrutiny 
 
 

Page 32



3  

Background papers:  
 
None 
 

 
Sign off:   

 
Fin CDR / CorpsF 

FC1314 002 / 
31.10.13 

Leg LT 
18801 

Mon 
Off 

TH 
– 
0129 

HR n/a Assets n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member: M Coe 
Has the Cabinet Member agreed the content of the report? Yes 
 
 

Page 33



 

P
ag

e 
4
 o

f 1
3
 

 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 2

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

  
 

C
ab

in
et

 1
2 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

13
 

 

R
ev

en
ue

 M
on

it
or

in
g 

P
os

it
io

n 

 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 

 

20
13

/1
4 

C
ou

nc
il 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 

20
13

/1
4 

B
ud

ge
t 

V
ir

em
en

ts
 

20
13

/1
4 

L
at

es
t 

B
ud

ge
t 

 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

 

Fo
re

ca
st

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
 O

ve
rs

pe
nd

 
/ (

U
nd

er
sp

en
d)

 

M
ov

em
en

t 
in

 
M

on
th

 
M

ov
em

en
t 

in
 

Q
ua

rt
er

 

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 

Pe
op

le
 

12
9.

74
9 

1.
42

7 
13

1.
17

6 
13

2.
29

0 
1.

11
4 

(0
.4

71
) 

(0
.2

05
) 

Pl
ac

e 
41

.9
08

 
0.

87
0 

42
.7

78
 

43
.2

42
 

0.
46

4 
(0

.0
45

) 
(0

.1
09

) 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

29
.8

83
 

(0
.3

50
) 

29
.5

33
 

29
.5

33
 

0.
00

0 
0.

00
0 

0.
00

0 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
O

ffi
ce

 
1.

99
1 

0.
24

2 
2.

23
3 

2.
23

3 
0.

00
0 

0.
00

0 
0.

00
0 

C
or

po
ra

te
 It

em
s 

9.
02

9 
(2

.1
89

) 
6.

84
0 

6.
78

4 
(0

.0
56

) 
(0

.0
56

) 
(0

.0
56

) 

T
O

T
A

L
 

21
2.

56
0 

0.
00

0 
21

2.
56

0 
21

4.
08

2 
1.

52
2 

(0
.5

72
) 

(0
.3

70
) 

 

     

 

Page 34



 

P
ag

e 
5
 o

f 1
3
 

 

K
ey

 I
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

A
ct

io
ns

 (
if 

re
qu

ir
ed

) 

 

Is
su

e 
V

ar
ia

ti
on

 

£m
 

D
ir

ec
ti

on
 

of
 T

ra
ve

l 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

or
re

ct
iv

e 
A

ct
io

n 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 –
 J

oi
nt

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 

A
du

lt
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e.
 U

ne
xp

ec
te

d 
pr

es
su

re
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g,
 w

in
te

r 
pr

es
su

re
 s

pi
ke

, d
el

ay
 in

 t
he

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
of

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
ev

ie
w

 
of

 c
ar

e 
ho

m
e 

fe
es

. C
on

tin
ue

d 
pr

es
su

re
 o

n 
he

al
th

 a
cu

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ha
s 

le
d 

to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 

of
 2

0 
ne

w
 c

lie
nt

s 
in

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l c
ar

e.
 

1.
29

8 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

· 
A

 1
0 

po
in

t 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

ud
ge

t 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

. 

·  
St

ar
 C

ha
m

be
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
ar

ri
ed

 o
ut

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 o
ne

 o
ff 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 fo
re

ca
st

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
f £

0.
19

6m
.  

· 
A

 P
ro

je
ct

 R
ev

ie
w

 T
ea

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

as
se

m
bl

ed
 (3

 S
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 / 

3 
Su

pp
or

t 
Pl

an
ne

rs
). 

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

90
0 

re
vi

ew
s 

to
 d

o.
 

·  
C

om
pl

et
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l R

ev
ie

w
s 

of
 c

as
es

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 s
in

ce
 1

st
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

 (1
31

 in
 t

ot
al

) b
y 

op
er

at
io

na
l t

ea
m

s 
an

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 

tr
ac

ke
d 

on
 a

 fo
rt

ni
gh

tly
 b

as
is.

  

· 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 R
ap

id
 R

es
po

ns
e 

R
ea

bl
em

en
t 

(IC
E)

 is
 n

ow
 u

nd
er

pi
nn

ed
 b

y 
de

ta
ile

d 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 g

o 
liv

e 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
pl

oy
ed

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

ad
m

iss
io

ns
 t

o 
H

os
pi

ta
l a

nd
 t

o 
re

tu
rn

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 b

as
ed

 s
up

po
rt

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 R
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 N

ur
sin

g 
C

ar
e.

 
U

nf
or

tu
na

te
ly

 t
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 C
ar

e 
H

om
e 

ad
m

iss
io

ns
 in

 
th

e 
m

on
th

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 a
 s

um
m

er
 s

pi
ke

 in
 H

os
pi

ta
l d

isc
ha

rg
es

. A
 jo

in
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
C

G
 a

nd
 P

C
C

 t
o 

m
ap

 t
he

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
pa

th
w

ay
 fr

om
 b

ot
h 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 p
er

sp
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 t
ra

ck
 t

he
 b

as
el

in
e 

vo
lu

m
es

 a
nd

 b
ud

ge
ts

 t
o 

m
ea

su
re

 t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
uc

ce
ss

 o
f r

ea
bl

em
en

t. 
C

lie
nt

 n
um

be
rs

 r
ed

uc
ed

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r. 

·  
Re

co
ve

ry
 o

f D
ir

ec
t 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 o
ve

r 
6 

w
ee

ks
. 5

46
 p

re
pa

id
 c

ar
ds

 –
  

£0
.2

04
m

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

co
ve

re
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
 If

 m
on

ey
 o

n 
ca

rd
s 

is 
no

t 
be

in
g 

us
ed

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 a

lso
 t

ri
gg

er
 a

 c
on

ve
rs

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

ri
gh

t 
siz

in
g 

th
e 

pa
ck

ag
e 

at
 t

ha
t 

po
in

t 
on

w
ar

ds
. 

·  
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

of
 0

.1
20

m
 fr

om
 c

lie
nt

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
re

sid
en

tia
l a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

Page 35



 

P
ag

e 
6
 o

f 1
3
 

 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 –
 C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. T
he

 
cu

rr
en

t 
ov

er
sp

en
d 

ca
n 

be
 a

tt
ri

bu
te

d 
to

 
pr

es
su

re
s 

on
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

ri
sk

s 
ar

ou
nd

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
s. 

 G
iv

en
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

va
ri

at
io

n 
m

ai
nl

y 
re

la
te

s 
to

 t
he

 n
on

-
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
of

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
s, 

th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 
ha

sn
’t 

be
en

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 th
is 

re
po

rt
 u

nt
il 

no
w

. 

0.
29

8  

W
or

se
ni

ng
 

 

· 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 r

isk
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 

a 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

ud
ge

t. 

· 
W

ee
kl

y 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

an
el

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
is 

ta
ki

ng
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

co
st

s. 
  

·  
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 S
ta

r 
C

ha
m

be
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

rr
an

ge
d 

to
 c

ea
se

 a
ll 

no
n-

es
se

nt
ia

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

. 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 –
 P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

P
ro

je
ct

s.
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 is
 a

s 
a 

di
re

ct
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 u
na

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

s.  

0.
05

3  

W
or

se
ni

ng
 

 

·  
O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

re
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 L
ei

su
re

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

on
tr

ac
t 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 s

av
in

gs
. 

 
 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 –
 H

om
es

 &
 C

om
m

un
it

ie
s.

 
U

nd
er

sp
en

d 
as

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

tio
ns

. 
(0

.4
33

) 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

· 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
is 

pr
oj

ec
tin

g 
a 

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 

bu
dg

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

io
ns

 t
hr

ou
gh

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

an
d 

ho
ld

in
g 

va
ca

nt
 p

os
t. 

 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 –
 E

du
ca

ti
on

, L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
Fa

m
ily

 S
up

po
rt

. M
ax

im
isa

tio
n 

of
 g

ra
nt

 a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

 o
n 

po
ol

ed
 b

ud
ge

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. 

(0
.1

03
) 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
· 

Su
st

ai
ne

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

tio
n 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
no

n-
es

se
nt

ia
l 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 a

nd
 m

ax
im

ise
 g

ra
nt

 in
co

m
e.

   
 

P
L

A
C

E
 –

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 2
60

k 
-  D

ow
nw

ar
d 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 r
en

ts
 

on
 le

as
e 

re
ne

w
al

s 
an

d 
re

nt
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

to
ge

th
er

 
w

ith
 r

en
t 

fr
ee

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 
to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 t
en

an
ts

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
vo

id
 

pe
ri

od
s. 

 C
ity

 C
en

tr
e 

gr
ou

nd
 le

as
e 

in
co

m
e 

is 
re

du
ci

ng
 d

ue
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 v
ac

an
t 

ci
ty

 
ce

nt
re

 r
et

ai
ls 

un
its

 a
nd

 fa
lli

ng
 r

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

ge
ar

ed
 h

ea
d 

le
as

es
 a

t 
re

nt
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

an
d 

le
as

e 
re

ne
w

al
s. 

(2
0k

) –
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f i
nc

om
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 

0.
24

0 
Sa

m
e 

 
 

· 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
nd

 lo
ok

in
g 

at
 w

ay
s 

of
 

m
ax

im
isi

ng
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

os
ts

. 

· 
C

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
m

ax
im

ise
 in

co
m

e 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

of
 t

he
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 

Es
ta

te
. 

 

Page 36



 

P
ag

e 
7
 o

f 1
3
 

 

fr
om

 t
ou

ri
st

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ce
nt

re
s.

 

P
L

A
C

E
 –

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 &

 I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es
 r

ed
uc

ed
 c

os
ts

 in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 u
sa

ge
 t

re
nd

s 
(5

0K
)  

Ea
st

er
n 

C
or

ri
do

r/
M

aj
or

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
(1

50
K

) 
re

du
ce

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
n 

sc
he

m
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 

St
re

et
 li

gh
tin

g 
en

er
gy

 c
os

ts
 4

50
K

 p
re

ss
ur

e.
 

Re
v i

se
d 

fo
re

ca
st

 fo
r 

in
co

m
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 

fr
om

 b
us

 la
ne

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
(2

00
K

) 

H
ig

hw
ay

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 is
 a

lso
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

 a
nd

 if
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ill

 le
ad

 t
o 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
pr

es
su

re
s, 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
Tr

an
sp

or
t. 

0.
05

0 
Sa

m
e 

 
 

· 
C

ur
re

nt
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 e
lse

w
he

re
 

in
 t

he
 D

iv
isi

on
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
be

 m
on

ito
re

d 
cl

os
el

y 
fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
sa

vi
ng

s. 

·  
O

ve
ra

ll 
in

fla
tio

n 
on

 s
tr

ee
t 

lig
ht

in
g 

en
er

gy
 c

os
ts

 a
t 

th
is 

st
ag

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
at

 £
0.

45
0m

. T
he

re
 is

 a
 c

or
po

ra
te

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

of
 

£0
.3

00
m

 fo
r 

en
er

gy
 in

cr
ea

se
s, 

w
hi

ch
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ve

ri
fic

at
io

n 
of

 e
ne

rg
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

 
 

 

P
L

A
C

E
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

M
er

cu
ry

 A
ba

te
m

en
t 

70
k 

co
st

 

Re
cy

cl
ab

le
 C

om
m

od
ity

 In
co

m
e 

pr
es

su
re

. 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
fr

om
 1

2/
13

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
s 

no
t 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 

St
af

f r
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 t

ar
ge

t  

Re
du

ce
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

ts
 o

f p
la

nt
 &

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 C

em
et

er
ie

s 
an

d 
C

re
m

at
or

iu
m

s. 
 

0.
28

7 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

 
 

·  
Re

cy
cl

at
e 

C
om

m
od

ity
 P

ri
ce

s 
ar

e 
hi

tt
in

g 
a 

lo
w

 p
er

io
d 

du
e 

to
 

m
ar

ke
t 

co
nd

iti
on

s, 
of

fic
er

s 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
se

ek
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
 w

he
re

 p
os

sib
le

, m
ar

ke
ts

 w
ill

 fl
uc

tu
at

e 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 y
ea

r,
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

re
po

rt
ed

. 

· 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

tio
n 

un
de

rw
ay

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
by

 s
av

in
gs

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
to

 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 d

at
e.

 

P
L

A
C

E
 –

 P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 
B

us
in

es
s 

Su
pp

or
t.

 S
av

in
gs

 r
ea

lis
ed

 fr
om

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 in

co
m

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

fr
om

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

va
ca

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s. 

(0
.1

13
) 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 

· 
Bu

dg
et

 m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

re
vi

ew
 b

ud
ge

ts
 fo

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

sa
vi

ng
s. 

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 in
co

m
e 

fr
om

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 p
re

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
dv

ic
e 

Page 37



 

P
ag

e 
8
 o

f 1
3
 

 

C
O

R
P

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 
–
 F

E
T

A
.  

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ue

 t
o 

H
B 

su
bs

id
y 

15
0K

 

0.
00

0 
Sa

m
e 

· 
H

B 
Su

bs
id

y 
fu

ll 
ye

ar
 t

ar
ge

ts
 o

f 0
.3

00
m

, m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 r

em
od

el
 b

ut
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 fo
re

ca
st

in
g 

50
%

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t. 
Re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
w

ill
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
ge

ne
ra

te
 s

av
in

gs
 e

lse
w

he
re

. 

· 
To

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 fo

re
ca

st
ed

 n
il 

va
ri

an
ce

 a
t y

ea
r 

en
d,

 1
.0

50
m

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ac
tio

n 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

en
ac

te
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
st

af
f 

ra
tio

na
lis

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

; r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
pe

nd
 o

n 
as

se
ts

 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

or
po

ra
te

 L
an

dl
or

d 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 b
ot

h 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
an

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 

C
O

R
P

 I
T

E
M

S 
- 

O
th

er
 C

or
po

ra
te

 I
te

m
s 

&
 C

ap
it

al
 F

in
an

ci
ng

.  
 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 b
or

ro
w

in
g 

co
st

s 
(6

6K
) 

Re
vi

ew
 o

f B
or

ro
w

in
g 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 (4
00

K
) 

Pr
es

su
re

s 
du

e 
to

 u
na

ch
ie

ve
d 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

s;
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

49
0K

 

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
40

3K
 

IC
T 

Sh
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

50
0K

 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

25
0K

 

O
ffs

et
 b

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A

ct
io

ns
; 

C
ar

bo
n 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

itm
en

t 
(3

3K
) 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

(1
20

0K
) 

– 
on

e-
of

f a
llo

ca
tio

n 

(0
.0

56
) 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 

· 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 P
or

tfo
lio

 w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

 t
o 

m
in

im
ise

 b
or

ro
w

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

· 
14

/1
5 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ct

io
n 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
co

st
 o

f b
or

ro
w

in
g 

by
 

£1
.0

00
m

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
bo

ug
ht

 fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 c

ur
re

nt
 y

ea
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

pa
rt

 y
ea

r 
sa

vi
ng

 o
f £

0.
40

0m
 

· 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t: 
fu

ll 
ye

ar
 t

ar
ge

t 
of

 £
2.

10
0m

 le
av

es
 £

0.
49

0m
 

un
ac

hi
ev

ed
. M

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

re
vi

ew
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 
sh

or
tfa

ll.
 

· 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Re
st

ru
ct

ur
e:

 In
 y

ea
r 

re
sid

ua
l a

ga
in

st
 fu

ll 
ye

ar
 

ta
rg

et
 o

f £
0.

96
0 

(fu
ll 

ye
ar

 b
as

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
). 

· 
IC

T:
  T

im
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 D
EL

T 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 

· 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n:
 D

el
ay

s 
w

ith
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
an

d 
de

liv
er

 t
ar

ge
t. 

· 
C

or
po

ra
te

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
– 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
ra

te
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

ta
in

ed
 a

bo
ve

 e
st

im
at

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

Su
pp

or
t 

sc
he

m
e;

 B
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s 

po
ol

in
g 

ha
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
re

ve
nu

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
in

 2
01

3/
14

.  

T
ot

al
 M

aj
or

 V
ar

ia
nc

es
 

1.
52

1 
 

 
 

Page 38



 

P
ag

e 
9
 o

f 1
3
 

 

D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
ns

 
 Fo

r m
on

th
 6

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
–

 a
ll 

re
d 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
fo

re
ca

st
.  

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

T
ot

al
 

 
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

Pe
op

le
 

A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

&
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 

H
om

es
 &

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 –
 S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

Pe
op

le
 M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 S

up
po

rt
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 

 

0.
26

7 

0.
03

0   

0.
05

9 

1.
35

3 

0.
10

0 

0.
34

4    

4.
45

2 

0.
81

6 

1.
10

0 

0.
33

6 

0.
04

0 

5.
80

5 

1.
18

3 

1.
47

4 

0.
33

6 

0.
04

0 

0.
05

9 

Pl
ac

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

&
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Pl
ac

e 
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 

 
0.

25
0  

0.
10

0 

0.
20

0 

0.
10

3 

0.
61

0 

0.
17

4 

0.
28

0 

0.
45

0 

0.
10

3 

0.
71

0 

0.
17

4 

0.
28

0 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Fi
na

nc
e,

 E
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

, T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

&
 A

ss
et

s 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 O

rg
an

isa
tio

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
em

oc
ra

cy
 &

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

 

0.
05

0 

0.
37

0 

 

0.
35

0  

0.
07

0 

0.
39

0 

0.
34

0 

0.
18

5 

0.
44

0 

1.
06

0 

0.
18

5 

0.
07

0 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

ffi
ce

 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

 
 

0.
29

5 
0.

29
5 

C
or

po
ra

te
 It

em
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 It

em
s 

1.
72

0 
1.

05
0 

2.
15

0 
4.

92
0 

T
ot

al
 2

01
3/

14
 D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

ns
 

2.
49

6 
3.

61
7 

11
.4

71
 

17
.5

84
 

 

Page 39



 

P
ag

e 
1
0
 o

f 1
3
 

 

V
ir

em
en

ts
 o

ve
r 

£1
00

,0
00

 fo
r 

C
ab

in
et

 t
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 

 

P
ay

 A
w

ar
d 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

P
er

m
it

s 
Sc

ho
ol

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

G
ra

n
ts

 C
F

W
D

’s
 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
T

ot
al

 V
ir

em
en

ts
 

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 
£m

 

Pe
op

le
 

0.
48

1 
(0

.1
23

) 
0.

14
0 

0.
68

0 
1.

17
8 

Pl
ac

e 
0.

23
7 

0.
12

3 
 

0.
00

4 
0.

36
4 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

0.
27

5 
 

 
0.

08
9 

0.
36

4 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

’ O
ffi

ce
 

0.
02

2 
 

 
0.

04
2 

0.
06

4 

C
or

po
ra

te
 It

em
s 

(1
.0

15
)  

 
 

(0
.1

40
) 

(0
.8

15
) 

(1
.9

70
) 

T
O

T
A

L
 

0.
00

0 
0.

00
0 

0.
00

0 
0.

00
0 

0.
00

0 

 

Vi
re

m
en

ts
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 t
he

 r
ev

en
ue

 m
on

ito
ri

ng
 p

os
iti

on
, a

lth
ou

gh
 s

til
l n

et
tin

g 
to

 z
er

o,
 in

cl
ud

e 
al

l v
ir

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

re
 t

he
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f b

ot
h 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 a

re
 le

ss
 t

ha
t 

£0
.1

00
m

 a
nd

 t
he

re
fo

re
 d

o 
no

t 
re

qu
ir

e 
ca

bi
ne

t 
ap

pr
ov

al
, a

nd
 t

ho
se

 o
ve

r 
£0

.1
00

m
 t

ha
t 

re
qu

ir
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

. 
Th

e 
vi

re
m

en
ts

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 t

he
 t

ab
le

 a
bo

ve
 a

re
 t

ho
se

 r
el

ev
an

t 
to

 q
ua

rt
er

 2
 o

nl
y,

 a
s 

th
os

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 q
ua

rt
er

 1
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ep

or
te

d 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 t
o 

ca
bi

ne
t 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 

Vi
re

m
en

ts
 o

ve
r 

£0
.1

00
m

 r
eq

ui
ri

ng
 a

pp
ro

va
l a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s;
 

· 
Pa

y 
A

w
ar

d 
– 

D
ist

ri
bu

tio
n 

of
 P

ay
 A

w
ar

d 
co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
fr

om
 c

or
po

ra
te

 it
em

s 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s. 

· 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
its

 –
 C

en
tr

al
isa

tio
n 

of
 C

ar
 P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
sa

vi
ng

s 
fr

om
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 in

to
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

. 

· 
Sc

ho
ol

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 F

un
di

ng
 –

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 L
SS

G
 b

ud
ge

t 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f r
ig

ht
s 

to
 fr

ee
 h

om
e 

to
 S

ch
oo

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 fu

nd
in

g.
 

· 
G

ra
nt

 C
ar

ry
 F

or
w

ar
ds

 –
 D

ist
ri

bu
tio

n 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ew

ar
d 

gr
an

t 
ca

rr
y 

fo
rw

ar
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

du
ri

ng
 2

01
2/

13
 o

ut
tu

rn
 t

o 
fu

nd
 

on
-g

oi
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s/
sc

he
m

es
. 

  

Page 40



 

P
ag

e 
1
1
 o

f 1
3
 

 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
&

 B
en

ef
it

s 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

R
at

es
 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

 
Ta

rg
et

  
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

13
  

 
 

54
.1

0%
  

 
£5

5.
02

3m
 

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

13
 

 
 

53
.2

3%
  

 
£5

4.
14

4m
 

 
20

12
/1

3 
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

12
  

 
 

54
.0

7%
  

 
£5

0.
64

4m
 

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

is 
cu

rr
en

tly
 5

3.
23

%
, s

lig
ht

ly
 lo

w
er

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
54

.1
0%

 t
ar

ge
t. 

 D
eb

t 
pr

of
ile

s 
in

di
ca

te
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
is 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 d
eb

t 
du

e 
to

 b
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
th

ei
r 

in
st

al
m

en
ts

 o
ve

r 
12

 m
on

th
s 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

10
 m

on
th

s. 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
pu

t 
to

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
re

co
ve

ry
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

w
ill

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
e 

w
ill

 s
ho

w
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 t
he

 c
om

in
g 

m
on

th
s.

 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
C

TS
 a

nd
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 R
ef

or
m

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
sh

ow
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
w

ith
 b

ot
h 

ar
ea

s 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 a
he

ad
 o

f t
ar

ge
t. 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

Su
pp

or
t 

ca
se

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
in

g 
43

.8
3%

 a
ga

in
st

 2
8%

 t
ar

ge
t 

an
d 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l r
ef

or
m

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
in

g 
46

.4
7%

 a
ga

in
st

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 3

9%
. 

N
at

io
na

l N
on

 D
om

es
tic

 R
at

es
 

 
Ta

rg
et

  
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

13
  

 
 

60
.0

7%
  

 
£5

4.
20

2m
 

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

13
 

 
 

61
.3

0%
 

 
£5

5.
31

6m
 

 
 

 
20

12
/1

3 
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

12
  

 
 

59
.6

6%
  

 
£5

2.
51

8m
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Ra
te

s 
is 

sh
ow

in
g 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 b

ei
ng

 6
1.

30
%

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 6

0.
07

%
, a

bo
ve

 t
ar

ge
t 

by
 1

.2
3 

%
 

an
d 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
th

is 
tim

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

by
 1

.6
4 

%
.  

 

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

re
m

ai
n 

co
nf

id
en

t 
th

at
 o

ur
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

in
 y

ea
r.

 
 C

ap
it

al
 P

os
it

io
n 

 
Sp

en
d 

to
 d

at
e P

eo
pl

e 
P

la
ce

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
T

ot
al

 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

15
.1

75
 

4.
69

8 
0.

99
8 

20
.8

71
 

Page 41



 

P
ag

e 
1
2
 o

f 1
3
 

 

R
ev

is
ed

 m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
20

13
/1

4 
–
 2

01
6/

17
 is

 £
16

2.
48

4,
 a

nd
 is

 fo
re

ca
st

 t
o 

be
 fi

na
nc

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s 
 

C
ap

it
al

 
R

ec
ei

pt
s 

U
ns

up
po

rt
ed

 
B

or
ro

w
in

g 
T

am
ar

 B
ri

dg
e 

&
 T

or
po

in
t 

Fe
rr

y 
B

or
ro

w
in

g 

G
ra

nt
s 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

S1
06

/ T
ar

iff
 / 

R
IF

 
R

ev
en

ue
 / 

Fu
nd

s 
T

ot
al

 F
un

di
ng

 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

£m
 

24
.7

74
 

31
.1

74
 

7.
44

5 
88

.8
58

 
2.

22
0 

2.
81

5 
5.

19
8 

16
2.

48
4 

 

T
he

 c
ap

it
al

 p
os

it
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 t

o 
re

fle
ct

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 it
em

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
it

he
r 

ha
ve

 d
el

eg
at

ed
 o

ffi
ce

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 t

ot
al

lin
g 

£0
.0

64
m

,  
or

 r
eq

ui
re

 C
ab

in
et

 a
pp

ro
va

l t
ot

al
lin

g 
£0

.8
81

m
, o

r 
re

qu
ir

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

al
 t

ot
al

lin
g 

£0
.6

27
m

. T
he

se
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 t
he

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

e:
   

T
ab

le
 A

 
Sc

he
m

e 
A

pp
ro

va
l V

al
ue

 
T

ot
al

s 

 
£m

 
£m

 

N
ew

 S
ch

em
es

  -
 A

lr
ea

dy
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 D

el
eg

at
ed

 O
ffi

ce
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
 

 
 

Re
d 

Br
ic

k 
Es

tu
ar

y 
W

ay
 P

la
y 

Pi
tc

h 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 –

 S
10

6 
fu

nd
ed

 
0.

01
7 

 

K
in

te
rb

ur
y 

C
re

ek
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 –

 S
10

6 
fu

nd
ed

 
0.

04
7 

 

T
ot

al
 

 
0.

06
4 

 
 

 

N
ew

 S
ch

em
es

 -
 R

eq
ui

ri
ng

 C
ab

in
et

 A
pp

ro
va

l  
 

 

C
re

di
t 

U
ni

on
 (F

ra
nk

fo
rt

 G
at

e)
 

0.
02

5 
 

H
am

 V
isu

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

W
or

ks
 –

 S
10

6 
fu

nd
ed

 
0.

05
6 

 

St
 B

ud
ea

ux
 V

isu
al

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
W

or
ks

 –
 S

10
6 

fu
nd

ed
 

0.
08

5 
 

Page 42



 

P
ag

e 
1
3
 o

f 1
3
 

 

Sc
he

m
e 

A
pp

ro
va

l V
al

ue
 

T
ot

al
s 

D
ev

on
po

rt
 V

isu
al

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
W

or
ks

 –
 S

10
6 

fu
nd

ed
 

0.
05

0 
 

C
or

nw
al

l V
isu

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

W
or

ks
 –

 S
10

6 
fu

nd
ed

 
0.

04
0 

 

W
es

to
n 

M
ill

 B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 –
 S

10
6 

fu
nd

ed
 

0.
03

0 
 

Ba
rn

e 
Ba

rt
on

 G
en

er
al

 A
m

en
ity

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

– 
S1

06
 fu

nd
ed

 
0.

07
1 

 

Fl
oo

d 
D

ef
en

ce
 L

on
gb

ri
dg

e 
Ro

ad
 –

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
A

ge
nc

y 
G

ra
nt

 
0.

25
1 

 

El
ec

tr
ic

 C
ar

 C
ha

rg
e 

Po
in

ts
 –

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
D

fT
 g

ra
nt

, L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n,
 a

nd
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

0.
22

6 
 

T
ot

al
 

 
0.

88
1 

 
 

 

In
cr

ea
se

 t
o 

E
xi

st
in

g 
S

ch
em

es
 –

 R
eq

ui
ri

ng
 C

ou
nc

il 
A

pp
ro

va
l 

 
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
C

iv
ic

 C
en

tr
e 

de
ca

nt
  

0.
62

7 
 

T
ot

al
 

 
0.

62
7 

 
 

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

T
ot

al
 

 
1.

57
2 

  A
dd

it
io

na
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 O

rg
an

isa
tio

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

at
a;

 

· 
FT

E 
nu

m
be

rs
 

· 
FT

E 
he

ad
 c

ou
nt

 

· 
Si

ck
ne

ss
 

Page 43



W
O

R
K

 F
O

R
C

E
: F

U
L

L
 T

IM
E

 E
Q

U
IV

A
L

E
N

T
S

 
Se
p-
13

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

 /
 1

3

Ch
an

ge
 2

01
2 

/ 
13

O
ct

 1
2

N
ov

 1
2

D
ec

 1
2

Ja
n 

13
Fe

b 
13

M
ar

 1
3

Ap
r 1

3
M

ay
 1

3
Ju

ne
 2

01
3

Ju
ly

 2
01

3
Au

g 
20

13
Se

pt
 2

01
3

Ch
an

ge
 in

 
ro

lli
ng

 1
2 

m
on

th
s

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t 
Re

po
rt

 (F
TE

)
N

ov
-1

0
M

ar
-1

1
O

ct
-1

2
N

ov
-1

2

Co
un

ci
l W

id
e

36
71

.6
0

32
48

.5
0

30
63

.0
0

-1
85

.5
0

32
39

.6
0

32
35

.1
0

32
12

.4
0

31
93

.9
0

31
63

.7
0

30
63

.0
0

31
11

.0
0

30
77

.2
1

30
28

.7
0

30
13

.4
0

29
95

.4
0

30
02

.6
0

(2
37

.0
0)

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

ff
ic

e

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
12

.0
0

12
.0

0
12

.0
0

12
.0

0
12

.0
0

12
.0

0
12

.0
0

12
.0

0
12

.0
0

12
.0

0
12

.0
0

12
.0

0
0.

00

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 S
up

po
rt

 (C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e)

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

Po
lic

y,
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

23
.9

0
23

.9
0

23
.9

0
23

.9
0

22
.9

0
21

.9
0

21
.9

0
21

.0
4

22
.0

0
23

.0
0

24
.0

0
25

.0
0

1.
10

To
ta

l
35

.9
0

35
.9

0
35

.9
0

35
.9

0
34

.9
0

33
.9

0
33

.9
0

33
.0

4
34

.0
0

35
.0

0
36

.0
0

37
.0

0
1.

10

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

es

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
14

2.
20

14
4.

10
17

0.
10

16
9.

10
16

9.
60

16
1.

20
16

6.
10

16
2.

26
15

7.
60

15
9.

70
15

8.
50

15
0.

70
8.

50

D
em

oc
ra

cy
 a

nd
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e
87

.9
0

89
.5

0
87

.6
0

89
.2

0
87

.2
0

86
.5

0
87

.5
0

89
.7

4
90

.3
0

88
.3

0
87

.3
0

87
.2

0
(0

.7
0)

Fi
na

nc
e,

 E
ff

ic
ie

nc
ie

s,
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 &
 A

ss
t

51
0.

80
51

0.
00

48
1.

90
48

2.
70

47
8.

50
46

7.
50

46
3.

20
46

2.
53

44
6.

40
44

3.
20

43
6.

90
45

0.
80

(6
0.

00
)

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l D

ev
86

.9
0

86
.9

0
86

.9
0

85
.9

0
84

.7
0

83
.3

0
83

.3
0

79
.7

6
79

.9
0

80
.0

0
79

.6
0

79
.8

0
(7

.1
0)

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
1.

00
0.

00
(2

.0
0)

To
ta

l
82

9.
80

83
2.

50
82

8.
50

82
8.

80
81

9.
30

80
0.

50
80

2.
10

79
6.

30
77

6.
20

77
3.

20
76

3.
30

76
8.

50
(6

1.
30

)

Pe
op

le

Ch
ild

re
ns

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

33
9.

40
33

9.
80

33
8.

10
32

9.
10

31
0.

40
31

0.
20

30
5.

20
28

8.
89

27
9.

20
27

9.
60

28
4.

00
28

5.
10

(5
4.

30
)

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

&
 F

am
ili

es
56

3.
60

56
4.

70
55

3.
70

54
4.

20
53

9.
30

53
9.

60
54

2.
00

51
3.

40
50

6.
90

50
4.

70
49

9.
00

49
2.

90
(7

0.
70

)

H
om

es
 &

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

22
6.

60
22

5.
50

22
4.

50
22

5.
00

24
0.

50
23

9.
40

24
4.

40
25

0.
61

24
7.

70
24

8.
50

24
8.

20
25

1.
90

25
.3

0

Jo
in

t C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 A

du
lt 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e

44
6.

00
44

3.
80

43
9.

20
43

3.
90

41
6.

40
34

4.
00

38
6.

10
37

6.
88

37
3.

90
37

0.
10

36
5.

50
37

1.
00

(7
5.

00
)

Li
fe

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g
0.

00

Pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 D
ire

ct
or

3.
00

3.
00

3.
00

3.
00

3.
00

3.
00

3.
00

6.
00

6.
00

6.
00

5.
00

4.
00

1.
00

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

11
.9

3
11

.9
0

11
.9

0
12

.9
0

12
.7

0
12

.7
0

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
0.

00

To
ta

l
15

79
.6

0
15

77
.8

0
15

59
.6

0
15

36
.2

0
15

10
.7

0
14

37
.2

0
14

81
.7

0
14

48
.7

1
14

26
.6

0
14

21
.7

0
14

15
.6

0
14

18
.6

0
(1

61
.0

0)

Pl
ac

e

Bu
si

ne
ss

 T
ea

m
 (D

ev
 &

 R
eg

)
7.

70
7.

70
7.

70
7.

70
7.

70
7.

70
7.

70
6.

71
6.

80
6.

80
6.

80
6.

40
(1

.3
0)

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
10

6.
00

10
5.

80
10

4.
80

10
2.

30
10

5.
30

10
5.

30
10

5.
30

10
5.

88
10

6.
00

10
5.

00
10

5.
00

10
5.

00
(1

.0
0)

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s
48

4.
80

47
9.

20
47

8.
40

47
5.

20
47

0.
70

46
7.

10
46

4.
10

47
1.

89
46

7.
90

46
3.

50
46

0.
50

45
7.

00
(2

7.
80

)

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
71

.0
0

71
.8

0
72

.0
0

72
.5

0
77

.5
0

77
.5

0
79

.5
0

79
.4

0
78

.4
0

77
.4

0
77

.4
0

78
.1

0
7.

10

St
ra

te
gi

c 
H

ou
si

ng

Tr
an

sp
or

t &
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

12
0.

70
12

0.
50

12
1.

70
13

1.
30

13
3.

60
12

9.
70

13
3.

60
13

3.
28

13
0.

80
12

8.
80

12
8.

90
13

0.
10

9.
40

W
as

te
 P

FI
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
2.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
(1

.0
0)

To
ta

l
79

3.
20

78
8.

00
78

7.
50

79
2.

00
79

7.
80

79
0.

30
79

2.
20

79
8.

16
79

0.
90

78
2.

50
77

9.
60

77
7.

60
(1

5.
60

)

M
ov

ed
 to

 T
ra

ns
 &

 In
f

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1

Page 44



W
O

R
K

FO
R

C
E

: H
E

A
D

C
O

U
N

T
 (

N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

S)
Se
p-
13

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t R
ep

or
t (

H
ea

dc
ou

nt
)

M
ar

-1
0

M
ar

-1
1

M
ar

-1
2

M
ar

-1
3

Ch
an

ge
 

20
12

/1
3

O
ct

-1
2

N
ov

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

Ja
n-

13
Fe

b-
13

M
ar

-1
3

A
pr

-1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
n-

13
Ju

l-1
3

A
ug

-1
3

Se
p-

13

Ch
an

ge
 in

 
ro

lli
ng

 1
2 

m
on

th
s

Co
un

ci
l W

id
e

4,
75

1
   

   
 

4,
71

3
   

   
 

4,
15

5
   

   
 

3,
83

8
   

   
 

(2
49

)
4,

09
3

   
   

 
4,

08
3

   
   

 
4,

04
0

   
   

 
4,

02
5

   
   

 
3,

99
3

   
   

 
3,

83
8

   
   

 
3,

90
9

   
   

  
3,

92
4

   
   

  
3,

86
2

   
   

  
3,

83
7

   
   

  
3,

81
6

   
   

  
3,

78
1

   
   

  
(3

12
)

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

ff
ic

e
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

0
12

   
   

   
   

12
   

   
   

   
12

   
   

   
   

 
12

   
   

   
   

 
12

   
   

   
   

 
12

   
   

   
   

 
12

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

  
0

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 S
up

po
rt

 (C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e)

(3
)

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

0

Po
lic

y,
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

0
26

   
   

   
   

26
   

   
   

   
26

   
   

   
   

 
26

   
   

   
   

 
25

   
   

   
   

 
24

   
   

   
   

 
24

   
   

   
   

  
23

   
   

   
   

  
24

   
   

   
   

  
25

   
   

   
   

  
26

   
   

   
   

  
27

   
   

   
   

  
1

To
ta

l
(3

)
38

   
   

   
   

38
   

   
   

   
38

   
   

   
   

 
38

   
   

   
   

 
37

   
   

   
   

 
36

   
   

   
   

 
36

   
   

   
   

  
35

   
   

   
   

  
36

   
   

   
   

  
37

   
   

   
   

  
38

   
   

   
   

  
39

   
   

   
   

  
1

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

15
19

8
   

   
   

 
19

9
   

   
   

 
22

9
   

   
   

 
22

8
   

   
   

 
22

9
   

   
   

 
21

6
   

   
   

 
22

2
   

   
   

  
21

7
   

   
   

  
21

3
   

   
   

  
21

5
   

   
   

  
21

3
   

   
   

  
20

2
   

   
   

  
4

D
em

oc
ra

cy
 a

nd
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e
0

10
2

   
   

   
 

10
4

   
   

   
 

10
2

   
   

   
 

10
3

   
   

   
 

10
1

   
   

   
 

10
0

   
   

   
 

10
1

   
   

   
  

10
3

   
   

   
  

10
4

   
   

   
  

10
2

   
   

   
  

10
1

   
   

   
  

10
2

   
   

   
  

0

Fi
na

nc
e,

 E
ff

ic
ie

nc
ie

s,
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 &
 A

ss
t

(6
6)

68
8

   
   

   
 

68
4

   
   

   
 

64
5

   
   

   
 

65
1

   
   

   
 

64
2

   
   

   
 

63
2

   
   

   
 

62
3

   
   

   
  

62
9

   
   

   
  

61
1

   
   

   
  

60
4

   
   

   
  

59
7

   
   

   
  

60
4

   
   

   
  

(8
4)

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l D

ev
(3

0)
96

   
   

   
   

96
   

   
   

   
96

   
   

   
   

 
95

   
   

   
   

 
93

   
   

   
   

 
91

   
   

   
   

 
91

   
   

   
   

  
89

   
   

   
   

  
89

   
   

   
   

  
89

   
   

   
   

  
89

   
   

   
   

  
88

   
   

   
   

  
(8

)

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
(1

)
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
(2

)
To

ta
l

(8
2)

1,
08

6
   

   
 

1,
08

5
   

   
 

1,
07

4
   

   
 

1,
07

9
   

   
 

1,
06

7
   

   
 

1,
04

1
   

   
 

1,
03

9
   

   
  

1,
04

0
   

   
  

1,
01

9
   

   
  

1,
01

2
   

   
  

1,
00

1
   

   
  

99
6

   
   

   
  

(9
0)

Pe
op

le
Ch

ild
re

ns
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
(2

1)
37

0
   

   
   

 
37

0
   

   
   

 
36

8
   

   
   

 
35

9
   

   
   

 
33

9
   

   
   

 
33

8
   

   
   

 
33

3
   

   
   

  
33

0
   

   
   

  
32

0
   

   
   

  
32

0
   

   
   

  
32

4
   

   
   

  
31

1
   

   
   

  
(5

9)

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

&
 F

am
ili

es
17

8
88

4
   

   
   

 
88

3
   

   
   

 
86

3
   

   
   

 
85

3
   

   
   

 
85

2
   

   
   

 
84

1
   

   
   

 
85

6
   

   
   

  
85

2
   

   
   

  
83

2
   

   
   

  
82

8
   

   
   

  
81

9
   

   
   

  
80

3
   

   
   

  
(8

1)

H
om

es
 &

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

10
5

27
1

   
   

   
 

27
0

   
   

   
 

26
8

   
   

   
 

26
8

   
   

   
 

28
5

   
   

   
 

28
3

   
   

   
 

28
8

   
   

   
  

29
4

   
   

   
  

29
1

   
   

   
  

29
2

   
   

   
  

29
3

   
   

   
  

29
5

   
   

   
  

24

Jo
in

t C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 A

du
lt 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e

(1
23

)
58

1
   

   
   

 
57

8
   

   
   

 
57

2
   

   
   

 
56

6
   

   
   

 
54

2
   

   
   

 
43

7
   

   
   

 
49

4
   

   
   

  
48

3
   

   
   

  
48

1
   

   
   

  
47

6
   

   
   

  
47

1
   

   
   

  
47

3
   

   
   

  
(1

08
)

Li
fe

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g
(2

53
)

0

Pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 D
ire

ct
or

(2
)

3
   

   
   

   
   

3
   

   
   

   
   

3
   

   
   

   
   

3
   

   
   

   
   

3
   

   
   

   
   

3
   

   
   

   
   

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

1

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

13
   

   
   

   
  

13
   

   
   

   
  

13
   

   
   

   
  

14
   

   
   

   
  

14
   

   
   

   
  

14

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
0

1
   

   
   

   
   

1
   

   
   

   
   

1
   

   
   

   
   

1
   

   
   

   
   

1
   

   
   

   
   

1
   

   
   

   
   

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
To

ta
l

(1
15

)
2,

11
0

   
   

 
2,

10
5

   
   

 
2,

07
5

   
   

 
2,

05
0

   
   

 
2,

02
2

   
   

 
1,

90
3

   
   

 
1,

97
5

   
   

  
1,

97
9

   
   

  
1,

94
4

   
   

  
1,

93
6

   
   

  
1,

92
7

   
   

  
1,

90
1

   
   

  
(2

09
)

Pl
ac

e
Bu

si
ne

ss
 T

ea
m

 (D
ev

 &
 R

eg
)

0
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

)

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
1

11
8

   
   

   
 

11
9

   
   

   
 

11
8

   
   

   
 

11
6

   
   

   
 

11
9

   
   

   
 

11
9

   
   

   
 

11
9

   
   

   
  

11
9

   
   

   
  

11
9

   
   

   
  

11
8

   
   

   
  

11
8

   
   

   
  

11
8

   
   

   
  

0

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s
(2

9)
49

5
   

   
   

 
48

9
   

   
   

 
48

8
   

   
   

 
48

3
   

   
   

 
47

8
   

   
   

 
47

4
   

   
   

 
47

1
   

   
   

  
48

1
   

   
   

  
47

6
   

   
   

  
47

1
   

   
   

  
46

8
   

   
   

  
46

5
   

   
   

  
(3

0)

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
5

77
   

   
   

   
79

   
   

   
   

79
   

   
   

   
 

80
   

   
   

   
 

86
   

   
   

   
 

86
   

   
   

   
 

88
   

   
   

   
  

90
   

   
   

   
  

89
   

   
   

   
  

88
   

   
   

   
  

89
   

   
   

   
  

88
   

   
   

   
  

11

St
ra

te
gi

c 
H

ou
si

ng
(7

1)
Tr

an
sp

or
t &

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
46

15
6

   
   

   
 

15
5

   
   

   
 

15
5

   
   

   
 

16
6

   
   

   
 

17
1

   
   

   
 

16
6

   
   

   
 

16
9

   
   

   
  

17
0

   
   

   
  

16
9

   
   

   
  

16
5

   
   

   
  

16
5

   
   

   
  

16
4

   
   

   
  

8

W
as

te
 P

FI
(2

)
1

   
   

   
   

   
1

   
   

   
   

   
1

   
   

   
   

   
1

   
   

   
   

   
1

   
   

   
   

   
1

   
   

   
   

   
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

1
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

)
To

ta
l

(4
9)

85
8

   
   

   
 

85
4

   
   

   
 

85
2

   
   

   
 

85
7

   
   

   
 

86
6

   
   

   
 

85
7

   
   

   
 

85
8

   
   

   
  

86
9

   
   

   
  

86
2

   
   

   
  

85
1

   
   

   
  

84
9

   
   

   
  

84
4

   
   

   
  

(1
4)

M
ov

ed
 to

 T
IE

Pa
ge

 1

Page 45



A
V

ER
A

G
E 

N
U

M
BE

R 
O

F 
D

A
YS

 S
IC

K 
PE

R 
FU

LL
 T

IM
E 

EQ
U

IV
A

LE
N

T 
(F

TE
)

Se
p-
13

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

O
ct

-1
2

N
ov

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

Ja
n-

13
Fe

b-
13

M
ar

-1
3

A
pr

-1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
n-

13
Ju

l-1
3

A
ug

-1
3

Se
p-

13
Ta

rg
et

 
Th

re
sh

ol
d

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
D

em
oc

ra
cy

 a
nd

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e

11
.8

2
10

.9
5

10
.8

1
8.

93
9.

35
9.

04
8.

42
7.

14
6.

60
7.

01
7.

41
0.

00
9.

00
10

.5
0

Fi
na

nc
e,

 E
ff

ic
ie

nc
ie

s,
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 &
 A

ss
t

9.
87

9.
99

9.
92

10
.2

3
9.

63
9.

26
9.

47
9.

05
8.

94
8.

95
8.

18
7.

22
9.

00
10

.5
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l D

ev
6.

56
7.

77
8.

76
9.

59
9.

09
9.

11
9.

10
8.

90
8.

84
8.

54
8.

02
6.

97
7.

00
9.

00

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
6.

97
6.

99
7.

11
6.

90
6.

47
6.

40
6.

84
6.

56
6.

71
7.

22
6.

91
7.

15
7.

00
9.

00

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 S
up

po
rt

 (C
or

p 
Se

rv
ic

es
)

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3.
00

0.
00

5.
00

7.
00

D
IR

EC
TO

RA
TE

 T
O

TA
L 

9.
17

9.
32

9.
31

9.
33

8.
88

8.
63

8.
77

8.
29

8.
18

8.
30

7.
80

7.
11

8.
50

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

ff
ic

e
Po

lic
y,

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
5.

22
6.

73
10

.8
2

12
.9

5
9.

98
8.

11
7.

98
8.

22
7.

17
6.

25
7.

26
6.

38
7.

00
8.

00

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
5.

33
5.

25
5.

25
5.

33
5.

17
5.

58
5.

58
5.

00
3.

42
1.

58
0.

50
0.

50
7.

00
8.

00

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 S
up

po
rt

 (C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

)
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
6.

00
7.

00

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

O
FF

IC
E 

TO
TA

L 
5.

12
6.

06
8.

72
10

.1
3

7.
99

7.
01

6.
93

6.
84

5.
68

4.
52

4.
87

4.
46

7.
00

Pe
op

le
Jo

in
t C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
&

 A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e
14

.4
4

15
.1

1
15

.1
1

14
.7

4
13

.6
9

13
.2

3
13

.1
4

12
.3

8
11

.7
5

12
.0

1
11

.7
2

11
.0

6
11

.0
0

12
.0

0

H
om

es
 &

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

8.
03

7.
63

7.
85

8.
02

8.
16

8.
42

7.
45

7.
18

6.
68

6.
82

6.
78

6.
50

7.
00

8.
00

Ch
ild

re
ns

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

11
.5

4
11

.8
9

11
.6

7
11

.7
0

10
.8

6
10

.2
3

10
.3

9
10

.3
2

10
.4

6
10

.7
4

11
.1

6
11

.0
7

9.
00

10
.5

0

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

&
 F

am
ili

es
7.

91
8.

21
8.

86
9.

15
9.

06
8.

68
8.

88
7.

91
7.

98
8.

13
7.

86
7.

76
7.

00
9.

00

Pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 D
ire

ct
or

3.
67

3.
67

2.
33

2.
33

3.
33

3.
33

3.
33

1.
67

1.
67

1.
50

5.
20

7.
00

6.
00

7.
00

D
IR

EC
TO

RA
TE

 T
O

TA
L 

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
 S

ch
oo

ls
)

10
.5

3
10

.8
3

11
.0

7
11

.0
7

10
.5

5
10

.1
8

10
.0

6
9.

43
9.

14
9.

33
9.

25
9.

02
9.

45

Pl
ac

e
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

4.
18

3.
35

4.
96

3.
86

4.
79

3.
45

4.
26

4.
73

4.
74

5.
09

4.
58

5.
13

7.
00

9.
00

Bu
si

ne
ss

 T
ea

m
 (D

ev
 &

 R
eg

)
1.

42
1.

03
3.

49
6.

33
8.

91
13

.5
4

16
.0

2
22

.3
0

22
.3

0
22

.3
0

22
.1

3
18

.9
8

7.
00

7.
00

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s
10

.3
1

10
.3

2
10

.1
5

10
.2

4
9.

84
9.

58
9.

80
9.

77
8.

96
8.

78
7.

28
7.

50
9.

00
10

.0
0

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
4.

41
4.

45
4.

80
5.

10
5.

45
5.

78
6.

12
6.

49
4.

58
4.

33
4.

37
4.

20
7.

00
9.

00

St
ra

te
gi

c 
H

ou
si

ng
0.

00
0.

00

Tr
an

sp
or

t &
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

9.
45

10
.4

7
9.

46
9.

12
7.

84
7.

18
6.

86
3.

46
7.

53
8.

07
8.

39
7.

45
9.

00
10

.5
0

D
IR

EC
TO

RA
TE

 T
O

TA
L 

8.
72

8.
81

8.
59

8.
69

8.
33

8.
18

8.
32

8.
39

7.
80

7.
78

6.
91

6.
89

8.
50

CO
U

N
CI

L 
TO

TA
L 

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
 S

ch
oo

ls
)

9.
65

9.
88

9.
96

10
.0

1
9.

52
9.

23
9.

24
8.

83
8.

50
8.

61
8.

22
7.

90
8.

49

Pa
ge

 1

Page 46


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES
	6 THE PLAN FOR HOMES
	7 FEES, CHARGES AND CONCESSIONS POLICY
	8 CORPORATE MONITORING REPORT AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2013 (INCLUDING CAPITAL SCHEMES AND PROGRAMME APPROVALS)

